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Financial Highlights

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—+tF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Revenue WA 463.7 422.9
Profit attributable to RABHEB AP R
owners of the Company 1.2 8.3
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - [BRE K& 211.6 214.6
Equity M 273.6 266.8
Basic earnings per share BREREF HKO0.46 centiBfli  HK3.11 cents/&fll
REVENUE BY OPERATING SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
REETE2ZWA REBEER ZWA
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2018 = 2018
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2018 2017
Hong Kong &% 7.1%| 6.3%
© Mainland China F BIARE 17.4% | 17.1%
@ Japan and other Asian countries
AAREMEMER 37.4% | 34.0%
@ North America 3tZEM 8.9%| 89%
2018| 2017 @ South America FAZEN 1.8% | 2.5%
© Precision parts and components FE%Z &b 91.4% | 87.9% @ Europe B/ 26.0% | 29.9%
@ Consumer electronic products Z T HEMR 8.6% | 12.1% @ Other countries EBIR 1.4%| 13%
Total 45T 100.0% | 100.0% Total #85+ 100.0% | 100.0%
REVENUE PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
N THE COMPANY
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HK$' Million B &,7T HK$' Million F1 & 7T
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
report the annual audited results of the Company together with the
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$463.7 million, representing an 9.6% increase
from previous year. Overall gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$59.4 million this year, representing a 23.3% decrease from previous
year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$1.2 million (2017: HK$8.3 million).

Basic earnings for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
HKO0.46 cent (2017: HK3.11 cents) per share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Due to the failure in renewing the tenancy agreement for one of
the factories under precision parts and components segment, the
factory had ceased its manufacturing operation in February 2019.
An one-off provision for staff compensation approximately HK$13.4
million to layoff the workers was incurred in the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018, together with provision for impairment
loss of machines and equipment approximately HK$1.9 million under
the factory.

The turnover of the precision parts and components segment amounted
to approximately HK$423.6 million, representing an increase of 14.0%
from previous year. The operating profit in this segment decreased to
approximately HK$17.6 million (2017: HK$19.7 million), as incurred
the provisions for closure of the factory as mentioned above. If
the provisions were excluded, the operating profit in this segment
increased to HK$32.9 million from HK$19.7 million in 2017, which
was the highest among the past five years.

The turnover of the consumer electronic products segment decreased
to approximately HK$40.1 million, representing a 21.9% decrease. The
operating loss of this segment was increased to approximately HK$7.9
million from HK$7.3 million in 2017. Due to the continuous decline
in demand of its products, the Group decided that the operation of
this segment would phase out upon completion of existing orders on
hand in the first half of 2019.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The gross profit margin of the Group in 2018 dropped by 5.5%
to 12.8% mainly arising from the above-mentioned provisions for
the closure of the factory. The selling and distribution costs were
decreased by 10.4% to approximately HK$31.4 million mainly due
to the decrease in advertising expenses, and the administrative and
other expenses were increased by 3.5% to approximately HK$37.9
million. The finance costs had increased by 22.5% to approximately
HK$1.8 million due to the rise in market interest rates.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group will focus on development of the precision
parts and components segment business, including of speeding
up the automation for solving the problem of labour shortage in
Mainland China. In addition, the capital investment made during
the past few years in the precision parts and components segment
that not only enhanced the production capacity and efficiency but
also highly appreciated by our existing and new customers led to
the growth momentum in turnover during the recent years. The
Group will continuously seek for opportunities to invest in production
automation and new technology, so as to cope with the increasing
sales orders. Despite the uncertainty of the global economic situation
and challenges in 2019, we are still confident that the Group will
improve the profit margin and profitability. The Group’s financial
position remains healthy, and is strong enough to finance our daily
operation.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our board of directors,
management team and all our staff for their contribution, and also
thank for the support of our shareholders and business partners over
the years.

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The following highlights the Group’s results for the year ended 31
December 2018:

e Turnover increased by 9.6% from previous year to approximately
HK$463.7 million for the year.

e  Gross profit decreased by HK$18.0 million from 2017 to
approximately HK$59.4 million in 2018.

e  Profit from operating activities before finance costs decreased
by HK$3.7 million from previous year to approximately HK$6.9
million for the year.

e  Finance costs increased by HK$0.3 million from previous year to
approximately HK$1.8 million.

e Profit after tax for the year was approximately HK$1.2 million.

In the year under review, turnover of the precision parts and components
segment had increased by 14.0% as compared with previous year.
Turnover of the consumer electronic products segment had decreased
by 21.9% as compared with previous year.

The Group’s overall gross profit had decreased by 23.3% from previous
year.

The Group’s finance costs had increased to approximately HK$1.8
million for the year due to rise in market interest rates of banks and
other financial institution.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and loan facilities provided by its principal bankers and other
financial institution in Hong Kong.

The total borrowings from banks and other financial institution
included all term loans, finance leases, import and export loans, which
amounted to approximately HK$35.8 million as at 31 December 2018.

The Group’s financial position remains healthy. At the end of the
reporting period, the aggregate balance of cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$43.8 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

The Group’s borrowings are on a floating rate basis and are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars. These
match with the principal currencies in which the Group conducts its
business.

The gearing ratio on the basis of net debt divided by the total capital
plus net debt as at 31 December 2018 was 23.4% (2017: 27.8%).

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s machines and equipment and trade
receivables with carrying amount of approximately HK$7.9 million
and HK$0.1 million (2017: HK$25.5 million and HK$0.4 million) were
pledged under finance leases and bank loans — discounted bills with
recourse respectively.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 267,004,800 ordinary
shares in issue with total shareholders’ equity of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$273.6 million.

FUND RAISING

Other than obtaining general loan facilities to finance the Group'’s
trading requirements and finance leases to finance the acquisition of
machines and equipment, the Group did not have any fund raising
activities in 2018.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total workforce of
approximately 1,374 of which approximately 47 were based in Hong
Kong, approximately 5 were based in overseas and approximately
1,322 were based in Mainland China.

The Group remunerates its employees largely based on the prevailing
industry practice and labour laws. Since December 1996, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the employees of the Group.

Moreover, under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Group has operated a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for all its Hong Kong
employees. For overseas and Mainland China employees, the Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme operated by the respective local governments.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, throughout the year ended
31 December 2018, except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are not separate and are performed by Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since
the Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Company, the Board considers that this structure
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company and believes that this
structure will enable the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors

Lai Pei Wor (Chairman)
Chan Yau Wah (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Mak Kwai Wing
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors representing more
than one-third of the Board with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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Corporate Governance Report

Responsibilities and delegation of functions

The Board of the Company is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders’ value. The overall management
of the Company’s business is vested in the Board. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day management of the Company’s business to
the executive directors. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board focuses its attention on matters affecting the Company’s
overall strategic policies, finances and shareholders. These include
financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes in accounting
policy, the annual operating budget, certain material contracts,
strategies for future growth, major financing arrangements and major
investments, risk management strategies, treasury policies and group
structure.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over the
management. The Board members are fully committed to their roles
and have acted in good faith to maximise the shareholders’ value in
the long run, and has aligned the Group’s goals and directions with
the prevailing economic and market conditions. Daily operations and
administration are delegated to the management.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect
of director’s liability.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year ended 31 December 2018, four regular board meetings
were held at approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company and
one annual general meeting was held. The attendance record of each
director is set out below:

Attendance of annual
general meeting

ETEEBRRRAFAE
ERHERESHERLE
BE_T-\FT_A=t—RHLEFER"
EFECRTHREREH  WBFEETT

L‘Mﬁ%ﬂ‘&%ﬁt)&$%lzﬁﬁ’z&m%i‘%fﬁ Rz
ZRRIERR R 2 BRI RBRRE R
—RERAFARG - REFZ HELHN
T

Attendance of
Board meetings

in 2018 in 2018

—E-N\FHE —E-\FHE

Name of director EEpns BRRBFAERE 4 PN

Lai Pei Wor FBIEAN 1/1 4/4

Chan Yau Wah PR ZE 1/1 4/4

Kung Fan Cheong LEE 1/1 4/4

Mak Kwai Wing BHE 1/1 4/4

Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph &3 1/1 4/4
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION EERBEE

The Company has not set up a corporate governance committee. The
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out hereunder:

(a)

develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and directors of the
Company;

review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report; and

review these terms of reference and their effectiveness and from
time to time recommend any necessary changes.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are not
separate and are performed by Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since the Board will
meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the Company, the Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company and believes that this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and efficiently.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive directors have contracts with the
Company for a specified period of two years and are appointed
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and the CG Code.

Each independent non-executive director has made an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company and the Company
considers these directors to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. None of the directors is related to each other.

Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph who has been serving as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company for more than 9 years, has
confirmed his independence with reference to the factors set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers Mr. Li Yuen
Kwan, Joseph is still independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and will continue to bring
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquiry of the
Company’s directors, all directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. All directors also participate in
continuous professional development programmes such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals or reading books and
articles, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation
to their contribution to the Board. A record of the training received
by the respective directors are kept by the company secretary of the
Company.

The individual training record of each director received for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is summarised below:

HERERRE

RBPHEEZHBEERER  ARRERE
EHFEHBEIERGARRLEHREF 2H
AR RREFNAMFRETRER
el M B ERBEREA LR ZSMNEPE
HEUHBEEANXE REFHEFTEL
BRMBERMENES ZANB LG - BEF
PR 2 ER BB AR B R AMEFE -

BE_Z—)\&+-_A=+—BLFE %
EEMEZEBIZ @ EMAmT -

Number of training received
that are relevant to

the business or

directors’ duties

EXEHEBRESEREZ

Name of Director EENS 3= SR 2L
Lai Pei Wor FEEE AN
Chan Yau Wah [y
Kung Fan Cheong LEE

Mak Kwai Wing BEE
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph &3y

All the directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Ng Kwong Kui (“Mr. Ng"”) was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company in 2009. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Ng has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website (except Executive
Committee) and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the current members of each Board committee (except
Executive Committee) are independent non-executive directors, while
all the members of the Executive Committee are executive directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee currently comprises 2 executive directors,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and Mr. Chan Yau Wah. The
Executive Committee shall meet as it may consider appropriate.

The duties of the Executive Committee are as follows:

(@) to monitor the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Company;

(b) to discuss and make decisions on matters relating to the
management and operations of the Company;

() to exercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board between
its regular meetings; and

(d) to review and discuss any other matters as may from time to
time be delegated to it by the Board.

EEEXE8E

%%A RIUMNEEZEE® - MITEES -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 3 members, all of
them are independent non-executive directors. The members of the
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Kung Fan Cheong (chairman), Mr.
Mak Kwai Wing and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
The attendance record of each Remuneration Committee member is
set out below:

yMEES
FNEZE RN M=K EEK  EKEY
REMFATES - FHZBEXBAE
ERE(EE)  BERKERTRHLE -

AEERN HFMEEECHRT - REH - #
MEEEEREZHFLENT

Attendance of Remuneration
Committee meeting in 2018

—E-N\FHE
Name of director ESiR FHMEESLRAE
Kung Fan Cheong (Chairman) LEE (£E) 11
Mak Kwai Wing EEE 171
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =3ykS 11

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

(a)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management,
which should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

YL ES s T2AENRIIENT
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BB S K200 - e phaR T IF 4T L5 98
ARSI L SIS - MEEE
SR
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(f) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(h) to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

(i) to review and sanction new or amended salary, incentive bonus
and retirement benefit policies for the Group which are substantial
in their cost and have an impact on a significant proportion of
employees; and

() to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations
to the Board on executive directors’ remuneration packages and terms
of employment. The Remuneration Committee also formulated and
evaluated the remuneration policy and structure for the directors and
senior management of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended
31 December 2018 is set out below:

FH AR

Remuneration by band

FMESS(#)

() BHRBAEARTEEREMERAR
BEL PR SR U BT L (B 0
R AR R B A 4 AR —
B ERBERANER—N  BENE
ATAR - THBES

(9 BRI RHEREETRAEMERERE
REBESSRORBERSE - AR
SZELHEA DR —B HARERS
R —2 - AEBETAESEEE

(h EREMESIEECAPEATG2H
R B O B H B

(i) 1as RHERRRREKERRESRE
RECAR R B R B B 2 T sIERT
MTE - REEAL SR IREMBOR - &

() BAEBENBRBERLARY ¥
THAEFSEHETEBENEE -

AEERN  FHEZESRNTES 2FHME
MEERERAEESREES - HEE
SNFF RHEARAEERRREEAE
ZHNRR AR -

EREEAEHM AR

BREBELGEERTAFEBISR REBEE-T
—N\F+ZA=+—RBILFERFHARIZ
DZEMERANBHHEIIMT

Number of individuals
#H BIAB

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

#£221,000,0005 7T
1,000,001 7% 1,500,000 7T
1,500,001 7c 22,000,000/ 7T

Further particulars regarding directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 1 executive director,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and 3 independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, Mr. Mak Kwai Wing and
Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each Nomination Committee member is set
out below:

REEES
REZBEANA—BWITES  BIFNL
H(EE)R=ZBBILIFNTERANX - BF
LEESRE  BEREERFRHAE

AEER REZBEGCHTREH - 2
FHLEGEKBZHFELENT

Attendance of Nomination
Committee meeting in 2018

—E-N\FHE
Name of director BEEpnS REZESEEBRE
Lai Pei Wor (Chairman) FEIEEF (F/E) 1/1
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 1/1
Mak Kwai Wing HEE 11
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph &3y 1/1
The duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows: REZES@7BEWNT :
(a) to review the structure, size and diversity (including but not (a) ELEFERTEFTSHZER - AZLK
limited to age, gender, skills, professional and industry experience, BZ T b(BEETRNFE - E5) -

educational background, knowledge and length of service) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

to review the board diversity policy, as appropriate and the
measurable objectives that the board has set for implementing
the board diversity policy, and monitor the progress on achieving
the objectives; and

to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.

et BERTTELR HEER A
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in
maintaining a competitive advantage. A diverse Board will include and
make good use of differences in the age, gender, skills, professional
and industry experience, educational background, knowledge and
length of service. These differences will be considered in determining
the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be
balanced appropriately. All appointments of the members of the Board
are made on merit against objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Diversity at all levels have been shown to improve retention and
reduce the costs associated with employee turnover. In a diverse
workplace, employees are more likely remain loyal when they feel
respected, valued for their unique contribution and the importance
of being able to attract, retain and motivate employees from the
widest possible pool of available talent. Employees are more likely
to feel comfortable and happy in an environment where inclusivity
is a priority. Equality in the workplace is important for encouraging
workers from all backgrounds to feel confident in their ability and
achieve their best. The Company are committed to diversity at all
levels, including gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience. The recruitment and selection practices at all
levels are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates
are considered. The Company would identify and provide the relevant
professional training programs that will assist in the development of a
broader and more diverse pool of skilled and experienced employees
and that, in time, their skills will prepare them for senior management
and board positions.

The Nomination Committee of the Company reviews and assesses the
composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the Board
on appointment of new directors of the Company. The Nomination
Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Board and will give adequate consideration
to this Policy including gender balance of the directors and senior
management and their direct reports, and its progress in achieving
its diversity objectives.

Selection of individuals will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to age, gender, skills, professional and industry
experience, educational background, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected individuals will bring to the Board.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

1. Nomination and Appointment of Directors

(a) Criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the following criteria should be considered:

Character and integrity.

Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects
under the Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to
the Company’s business and corporate strategy.

Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Hong Kong Listing
Rules and whether the candidate would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or
Board committee(s) of the Company.

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time
to time for nomination of directors and succession
planning.

EERABE
1. EENREERER
(a) %A
EFHERRKEREAETES

B -

TR E E

B BREXER K
7 AMBEBRERRFER R
REEHEENER ARES
GXKEZ L BUR AR L
ZEEE -

REHEFREXREZ T
RMEEMAGTERR -

RECETARRA) EFE
FERBBLFATESTNR
o AR2E(ETRADA
SIBAIRIE AN R B AR BB L
OECEII

RBEANBEER XI5
- B RIERIZ T
THAREFEE S RMEM
BERR

ELRENMETEHREE
WERETS REEEKE
R/RETEEEETER
MR BMRE -

HMERARARR RSB RE
BEFENEMBZTERAE
REZEGR /REEEH
EEREREFTABAR -

BEHERZERERDA

—E-NEEH




TRER/RE
Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)

2.

Nomination Process
(a) Appointment of New Director

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

(i) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable).

(iii) The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

(iv) For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the general
meeting.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)
2. Nomination Process (continued)
(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

(iii) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The appointment of new directors will be considered and approved
by the Board and all new directors are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment
and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
pursuant to the CG Code.

Mr. Lai Pei Wor and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph shall retire by rotation
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the next
forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to the Company’s
Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2).

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the next forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company’'s circular dated 29 April 2019 contains detailed
information of the directors standing for re-election.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company'’s auditor, Messrs. Mazars CPA Limited, is set out as follows:

- e

BEARFER - KRAEN T,/ N T8
B ERR(BE)GAMEFEMBRAFZ
et

Fees paid/payable

HK$

B EAER

Services rendered FriR i AR 3% BT
Audit services 1% B AR 7% 1,045,000
Non-audit services (taxation services) IEZERTS (FRIGARTS) 65,400
1,110,400

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in
relation to the composition of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee of the Company comprises three independent non-
executive directors. The current members of the Audit Committee
are Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan,
Joseph. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Mak Kwai Wing who
has appropriate accounting professional qualifications. Code Provision
C.3.3 stipulates that members of the Audit Committee should meet
at least twice a year with the Company’s auditors. During the year,
there were two meetings held between the Audit Committee and
the Company’s auditor. Besides, the Audit Committee shall meet at
least twice a year. During the year, the Audit Committee held three
meetings. The attendance record of each Audit Committee member
is set out below:

EREES

ARrphESEZ B g 2AKEET LR
FI2MEMTE - ARAIEZZEEKERA=
BRI IFRITEFANX - BAIEZZBZK
BEBREREL  AEEXRERTNHE
H o BRZEGIREERECEHBEEZ
SHERER - TAMRXFBCIIGMATE
ARABNZHMEEZZEENKEREE
PEBFEEMAK - AFEAN - BRERES
ARARZEEN 2 FBETTRREE © ttoh
BERZEEBFELBITMAER - AFE
N BRZEQERIT-ZRER - BXXRE
SEMBZHFLEIT ¢

Attendance of Audit
Committee meetings in 2018

—E-\FHE
Name of director EEpnE ERZEEEERRK
Mak Kwai Wing (Chairman) EER (F/F) 3/3
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 3/3
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph Z=ds 3/3
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include the
review of the Group’s consolidated financial statements and reporting
process, risk management system and internal control procedures. It
also acts as an important link between the Board and the Company’s
auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit. During the
meetings held in 2018, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

(i) reviewed the directors’ report and audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the internal auditor or
external auditor before submission to the Board;

(i) reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2018;

(iii) reviewed the re-appointment of the external auditor and the
nature and scope of audits;

(iv) reviewed and recommended for approval by the board the 2018
audit scope and fees;

(v) reviewed and monitored the external auditor's independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

(vi) reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system; and

(vii) reviewed the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018. The directors ensure the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure the publication of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 45 to 50.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control systems
are designed for managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has overall
responsibilities for maintaining effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. During the year, the Board
conducted a review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, covering financial,
operational, compliance control and risk management functions.
The Group’s system of internal control includes the setting up of a
management structure with limits of authority, and is designed to help
the Group achieve its business objectives, protects its assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensures compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. After reviewing the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, the Board considers that the systems are
effective and adequate for the Group as a whole. The Board further
considers that there was no material issue relating to the Group's
risk management and internal controls systems including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group and that there were adequate staff with appropriate
and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the year.

The internal control team of the Company plays a major role in
monitoring the risk management and internal controls of the Group
and reports directly to the Audit Committee. It has full access to
review all aspects of the Group’s activities, risk management and
internal controls. All types of audited reports are circulated to the
Audit Committee and key management, which will follow up on any
actions and measures taken to improve risk management and internal
controls on the recommendations by the internal control team.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
by the Group are summarized as follows:

e |dentifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business
and operations.

R B T AR EE 4

EXemAYRAREELRANEZRSR
B YHEEFERTEARL - ZERE
BRABET AR S EEEMIPHERREE
REBBERHNEAR  MARBLERNKE
PROLIBAM S @ BRERAEMIFBE M
TR7E °

EXeuERZ BB THRNER AL
B E A M R E I N AR E I R AR
ERBRT RAFE EFECHAKERE
RERNABEZERGRTE - 2& 68
2 N R B IR B BE U0 H A AR TE R I
TES - ARENARERRGBREEY
REERNERIE AR AEBEZERHE
BEEBIR  REEEND REREI AR
2 BREFEENSARERESA SENY
BERERNBERRTIENET  AEETA
HEEAEER - REEAK B AR EE
RABERRGR  EFGRRLFELH
AEERENTIBEMLTR - BEFSH
—TRR RAFE  ARERYBEEER
B AR PR I LA R B B BER B A O T AR A ER A
MEREEMASEAGEEENREBRHE
TABUAK&ET - MERERT M 7% B i st
HFINERS B - B R MAE
FIFREE °

ARREHFEEEARERREERA
MEXSHELREERER - TERAEX
ZEgER - ZHANE2EAEMNAKEE)
HOER  BREELRANEZEEH - FF
RECREVERXHEZZBERTEER
EER - W RERAEZEG A REHERER
% M SREVA R A 2B R B IR & R SRR A
BELEET

AEERRES - FHEREEERRERAE
M

o HAIRREHARE RSN EERKE
FEZER -

K & P International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018




TEERRE

Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

e Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

e Determines the risk management strategies and internal control
processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

e  Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures
that appropriate internal control processes are in place.

e  Reports the results of risk monitoring to the Audit Committee
and the Board regularly.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by an internal audit
team, which reports directly to the Audit Committee and the Board
on a periodical basis. The team conducts internal audit reviews on
material controls and compliance with policies and procedures of the
Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans for corrective
actions and control improvement are identified and communicated
with operations management to address any issues, non-compliance
or deficiencies identified. The team monitors the implementation of
its recommendations by the operations management and reports the
outcome to the Audit Committee and the Board.

DIVIDEND POLICY

e The board of directors of the Company adopt the policy that,
in recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value.

e The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio.

e The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the Articles of
the Association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations and the factors set out below.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the
Company and its subsidiaries when considering the declaration
and payment of dividends:

financial results;

—  cash flow situation;

—  business conditions and strategies;

—  future operations and earnings;

—  capital requirements and expenditure plans;

— interests of shareholders;

— any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

— any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the
Group and the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends

may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial
year or period:

interim dividend;
- final dividend;
—  special dividend; and

— any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
shareholders’ approval.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or
scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to
the Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided
in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
or circulars are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false
or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees are available to answer
questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2019 Annual General Meeting (“AGM") will be held on 31 May
2019. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.

To promote effective communication with shareholders, the Company
maintains a website at www.kpihl.com, where extensive information
and updates on the Company's financial information, corporate
governance code and other information are posted and available for
public access.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting (“SGM")

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, member(s) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings, may by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary
of the Company to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition at the expense
of such requisitionist(s). If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The requisition must
specify the purpose of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the head office of the Company in
Hong Kong.

If the requisition is in order, the company secretary will ask the Board
to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the members concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened
as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the member(s) concerned at
a SGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

(@) at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than ten (10)
clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company, which cannot be amended
other than to a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent
error; and

(b) at least fourteen (14) clear days' and not less than ten (10) clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings other
than a Proposal for Election of Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s bye-laws,
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and
regulation:

1. The Company holds an AGM every year, and may hold a general
meeting known as a SGM whenever necessary.

2. Member(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all members having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 members, can
submit a written request stating the resolution intended to be
moved at the AGM; or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

3. The written request/statements must be signed by the member(s)
concern and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and its principal office at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei
Muk Road, Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong, for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company, not less than six weeks
before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than one week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition.

4. If the written request is in order, the company secretary will ask
the Board of the Company (i) to include the resolution in the
agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the statement for the
general meeting, provided that the member(s) concerned have
deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice
of the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the member(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid or the member(s) concerned have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purposes, the member(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not
be included in the agenda for the AGM; or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Members who have enquires about the above procedures or have
enquires to put to the Board may write to the company secretary
at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung,
N.T., Hong Kong.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road,
Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chairman/Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2481 3098

Email: enquiry@kpihl.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law. Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2276 3000 for any
assistance.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholder meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholder meeting will be taken by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
the shareholder meeting.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Pei Wor, aged 62, is the chairman and managing director of
the Company. Mr. Lai was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996. He is the founder of the Group
and has over 37 years of experience in the industry. He is responsible
for the Group’s overall strategic planning, policy making and financial
management. He has been a director of Hi-Tech Precision Industrial
Limited since 1984, a director of Hideki Electronics Limited since
1989, a director of Cokeen Development Limited and K. S. (China)
Electronics Manufactory Limited since 1990, a director of K & P
Group (Holdings) Limited since 1994, a director of Hi-Tech Investment
Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property Holdings Limited since 1997, a
director of E-Dotcom Limited since 2001, a director of Hi-Tech (China)
Investment Limited and A Z8(7 LL1)E FHBR A 7] since 2002, a director
of Mars Field Limited, a director and legal representative of A L7 &2
WEFAERAA and FEMEFORYINAF R A F] since 2010 and acted
as a director of Technology Trends International Limited since 2001
and a secretary since 2009. He has also been appointed as a director
of Sun Ngai Plastic Products Factory Limited, a director of Hunpex
Limited, and a director and legal representative of RAHZERHR(FII)
BRAA] since 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Chan Yau Wabh, aged 60, is the deputy chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
13 September 1996. He is also a general manager in Hi-Tech Investment
Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 1990. He is
responsible for the planning and management in production activities.
He holds a higher diploma in production and industrial engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) and a diploma in management studies from
the Hong Kong Management Association. He has over 37 years of
experience in the industry. He has been a director of Hideki Electronics
Limited and K & P Group (Holdings) Limited since 1994, a director of
K. S. (China) Electronics Manufactory Limited since 1995, a director
of Hi-Tech Investment Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property Holdings
Limited since 1997, a director of Technology Trends International
Limited since 2001, a director of Hi-Tech (China) Investment Limited
and FAF B FAR AR since 2002 and acted as a director of
E-Dotcom Limited since 2009. He has also been appointed as a
director of Sun Ngai Plastic Products Factory Limited, a director of
Hunpex Limited, and a supervisor of $RAZERIRCFEIINA PR AR since
2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, aged 64, is a partner in the law firm of Pang,
Kung & Co. and is a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr.
Kung was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, BSoc.Sc., ATIHK, FCPA (Aust), aged 69, graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Social
Sciences. He is also a Fellow of CPA Australia and an Associate of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Mak was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 3 July 2017.
Mr. Mak has over 40 years of experience in the taxation field. In July
2006, Mr. Mak joined Mazars Tax Services Limited (“Mazars Tax”) as
an executive director, was a managing director of Mazars Tax from
January 2008 to August 2014 and was a Senior Advisor of Mazars Tax
from September 2014 to June 2017. Before joining Mazars Tax, Mr.
Mak was a tax principal at Ernst & Young and took early retirement
in January 2004. Currently, Mr. Mak is an independent non-executive
director of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00882)
and a member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Previously, Mr. Mak served as the governor of Rotary
International District 3450 and the Chairman of the Tax Specialization
Development Working Group of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph, aged 66, graduated from State University
of New York at Buffalo in the United States of America and holds
a bachelor of science in business administration degree. Mr. Li was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 24 August 2005. After working in the business sector for 9 years,
he joined the Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 1985
as an assistant director and in 1992 he was appointed as a director of
the Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries from which post
he retired in January 2005. He has over 30 years experience in serving
the manufacturing industry of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Man Kit, aged 59, is the marketing director of precision
parts and components segment of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in 1984. He is responsible for the marketing and sales. He has
over 35 years of experience in the industry.

Mr. Li Kam Keung, aged 58, is the production manager of the precision
parts and components segment in Kong Hau factory, Zhongshan.
Mr. Li joined the Group in 1985. He is responsible for the operation
and management in production segment. He has over 32 years of
experience in the industry.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of precision parts and components (comprising keypads,
synthetic rubber and plastic components and parts), and the design,
manufacture and sale of consumer electronic products (comprising
time, weather forecasting and other products). There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 153.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2017: Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
28 May 2019 to Friday, 31 May 2019, both dates inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Friday, 31 May 2019, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 27 May 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Due to the failure in renewing the tenancy agreement for one of
the factories under precision parts and components segment, the
factory had ceased its manufacturing operation in February 2019.
An one-off provision for staff compensation approximately HK$13.4
million to layoff the workers was incurred in the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018, together with provision for impairment
loss of machines and equipment approximately HK$1.9 million under
the factory.

The turnover of the precision parts and components segment amounted
to approximately HK$423.6 million, representing an increase of 14.0%
from previous year. The operating profit in this segment decreased to
approximately HK$17.6 million (2017: HK$19.7 million), as incurred
the provisions for closure of the factory as mentioned above. If
the provisions were excluded, the operating profit in this segment
increased to HK$32.9 million from HK$19.7 million in 2017, which
was the highest among the past five years.

The turnover of the consumer electronic products segment decreased
to approximately HK$40.1 million, representing a 21.9% decrease. The
operating loss of this segment was increased to approximately HK$7.9
million from HK$7.3 million in 2017. Due to the continuous decline
in demand of its products, the Group decided that the operation of
this segment would phase out upon completion of existing orders on
hand in the first half of 2019.

The gross profit margin of the Group in 2018 dropped by 5.5%
to 12.8% mainly arising from the above-mentioned provisions for
the closure of the factory. The selling and distribution costs were
decreased by 10.4% to approximately HK$31.4 million mainly due
to the decrease in advertising expenses, and the administrative and
other expenses were increased by 3.5% to approximately HK$37.9
million. The finance costs had increased by 22.5% to approximately
HK$1.8 million due to the rise in market interest rates.

EEEHE

Report of the Directors

E 3 0]

HREEERGIEET —HMEZHERZ
RIEmEREELD  WBREER_E—NF
ZAMEILEEE  c AREREBE-T—\F
+Z A=+ —HUEFEAZREZEIIEL
— R 8 2 BE 413,400,000 7T f2 H
BB E R E R 491,900,000 7T °

BERTHBHI A EEEREF LH14.0%
Z #9423,600,0007% Jr ° {8 f 7 L it B B
MEEBE HWEEDEZEMNREATF
Bl > = #917,600,000% jT( — & — + £ ¢
19,700,000/ 7T ) « A N BIEZERE - It
KD H8 2 mF R 2 4919,700,0007 7T
F+ 2 #932,900,00078 7 + WA T3 T @SR
FEH -

B HEMD B EEERETRL21.9%
£ #940,100,000 7T © W& E D 2 E18
R % 97,300,000/ 7038 hn = 497,900,0007%
T AR BEMIBZRKBETNE &%
EARATER_E-—NFLEFEXKIEG]E
BIFIE DT EIE -

BHRELABERARE BB ~&EERZ
E-NEFEEBBEMNEREAFRHI55%E
12.8% ° $HE R M AR L 10.4%E 4
31,400,000 0 T 2R REHEER Z
WA MATE R E A E B INE3.5%E 4
37,900,000/ 7T ° @& K AE TS FE EF
Mg N22.5% %= #71,800,00078 7T °

BRHERZERAERD A

—E-NEEH




ESERE

Report of the Directors

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group's turnover for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$463.7 million, representing an 9.6% increase
from previous year. Overall gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$59.4 million this year, representing a 23.3% decrease from previous
year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$1.2million (2017: HK$8.3 million).

Basic earnings for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
HKO0.46 cent (2017: HK3.11 cents) per share.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. We strive
to minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. We also
require factories operate in compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval
from the relevant Chinese regulators. Emails and electronic messages
have replaced letters for most formal and informal communications,
both externally and internally. Further details are set out in the
environmental, social and governance report which will be published
on the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s and the Company's
websites.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange.
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Bermuda.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, we have complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Bermuda.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures that all staff are reasonably
remunerated and it continues to improve and review and update
regularly on its policies for remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety. The Group maintains a good
relationship with its customers. Customers are encouraged to make
recommendations with the aim of improving products quality. The
Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a fair
and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial budget
at the end of each financial year based on their knowledge to the
external environments and a number of forecasts and estimates. Given
the change of unforeseeable external environments in the industry, the
Group is facing significant strategic risks on its capital expenditures
and working capital requirements when changing the strategic plans
to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing keen competition in the market. To maintain
the Group’s competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership
strategy as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other
competitors.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting
from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance
matters, are adequately managed.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 35 to consolidated
financial statements heading “Financial risk management objectives
and policies”.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 154. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the year are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, amounted to HK$17,191,314 (2017: HK$27,483,903)
of which no final dividend was proposed for the year (2017: Nil).
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company did not pay
final dividend for 2017. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$50,856,881 (2017: HK$50,856,881)
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers accounted
for 36.3% of the total sales of the Group for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 22.9%. Purchases from
the five largest suppliers accounted for 39.7% of the total purchases
of the Group for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 13.6%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors

Lai Pei Wor
Chan Yau Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Mak Kwai Wing
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Messrs. Lai Pei Wor and Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph shall retire
by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
next forthcoming annual general meeting.

Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Mak Kwai Wing and Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph,
the independent non-executive directors, are appointed for a period
of two years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Mak Kwai Wing and
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.

EEERE

Report of the Directors

FREFRHER

CIEEAFE  AERARFPHAFEZARE
B ERE36.3%  MERFATFL ZHE
F1h22.9% - AEBEAMERERFE 2R
EEBIREEE39.7% 0 MEPHFAEER 2
REEFA(R13.6% °

ARABEFHHE MR ASEABRROE
EE=A BBEARBEHITRARS%E
S)RAKEAAEFPIRERT L EES
ER B

=
ARBRARFEEZESWT ¢

BITES
B AN
PR EE

BYFHTES
LES

BT

Fn#

RIBEARRQE 2B 4HRIES7(1)R87(2)f
BEMEERFRHLEBRBRITZ
RRAFASHBRET BESHATER
WRREREERITCRRBF RS LBEEE
£

BYFRTESAES L  BEREER
FRHELETHAME - ARFDRBFLE
ERE  BERKERFHTLERE BT
HEFAARBMBELOERE  RAFH
TIBEH  ARF—ERA/RELBEILA
+ o

BEHERZERERDA

—E-NEEH




ESERE

Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 31 to 33 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2018, and the contract can be terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than six months’ nor more than seven months’
prior notice in writing.

Apart from foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
next forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board of the
Company with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion that no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significant in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company’s subsidiary was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENT

2012 share option scheme was adopted for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees of the
Company. No share options were granted, forfeited, cancelled or
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2018. Further details of
the share option scheme are disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the directors in the share
capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
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Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FsROHE - SORERMEE

Percentage of

Directly Founder of a the Company’s
beneficially discretionary issued share
owned trust Total capital
2GR ERRBRERIT
Name of director EZH R EEERRES AHA me R Z2BEDL
Lai Pei Wor FEEEAD 22,902,000 *97,242,000 120,144,000 45.00
Chan Yau Wah PR 7,700,000 - 7,700,000 2.88
30,602,000 97,242,000 127,844,000 47.88

Note: Mz -

* Details of Mr. Lai Pei Wor’s interests are set out in the section headed
“Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

O BEMAEZERFER TXZIEZRRR
Hib AR MR D 2 Em R ER ] -

B EXFAHEEIN R-E-N\F+_-A=
T—HB REFHFLBEEROIEIS2EZR
EMFEZARAECMACE  SREF
ETAMEARRA LB - FEEEAR
Al B EATARE A B 2 A0 SR B A ) 1L 4
BAERRAER

BEHERZERERDA

—E-NEEH




ESERE

Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the share
option scheme disclosures in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to director or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons or corporations
(other than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
were as follows:

Long positions:
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RA:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEROHE - SOREREE

Percentage

Through of the

Directly spouse or Company’s

beneficially minor Beneficiary issued

owned children of a trust Total  share capital

RN

E# (R BRITRA

Name #& ERBEEA ARFEFZ  EREZIERA o6 BAL

Chan Yuk Lin (Note a) BEE (Msta) - 22,902,000 97,242,000 120,144,000 4500

Celaya (PTC) Limited (Note b)  Celaya(PTC)Limited (Fifzth) - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42

Trident Corporate Services Trident Corporate Services - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42
(B.V1.) Limited (Note ¢) (B.VL) Limited (Fif3Ec)

Lai Yiu Chun (Note d) WBEE (M:d) 2,298,000 21,450,000 - 23,748,000 8.89

Lam Lin Chu (Note d) mEH (Mzd) 22,434,000 1,314,000 - 23,748,000 8.89
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SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHERPERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(@) Ms. Chan Yuk Lin, spouse of Mr. Lai Pei Wor, was deemed to be interested
in the shares.

(b)  Celaya (PTC) Limited holds 97,242,000 shares in its capacity as trustee of The
Lai Family Unit Trust, of which all units are held by Trident Corporate Services
(B.V.I.) Limited in its capacity as trustee of The Lai Family Trust, a discretionary
trust of which the spouse and issue of Mr. Lai Pei Wor are discretionary objects.

(c)  The shares referred to herein relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (b) above.

(d)  Ms. Lam Lin Chu is the wife of Mr. Lai Yiu Chun, who is a brother of Mr. Lai
Pei Wor. Both Ms. Lam Lin Chu and Mr. Lai Yiu Chun are declaring interests
in the same parcel of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year, which constitute exempted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under the Main Board Listing
Rules, are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

No permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year, or is
in force at the date of this report, for the benefit of a then director
or a director of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or a then director or a director of its subsidiary (if made
by the Company). The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
of the Group.

AUDITORS

Mazars CPA Limited will retire as auditor of the Company at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and a resolution
for their reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at such annual general meeting.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 February 2019, the factory of a subsidiary in the precision parts
and components segment located at Mainland China was closed down
subsequent to the end of tenancy agreement. Up to the date of the
consolidated financial statements, the Group assessed the financial
impact regarding the closure of the factory is not significant.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

MAZARS

To the shareholders of K & P International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K & P
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 153, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “ Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mazars CPA LIMITED

b R BR () e A R A
42nd Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report (ontinued)

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter

REEITER

RRETFRERERFNEXZHE  RA
HBAMGAMBRERNBEAR/ERNS
H o ZFEFHERRMIETERBE VTR
REBABRBRE  MRMTIEHZES
HEHBVHNER - RMIEEE MTEEER
ARTRPINREEENFRESFEER -

described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in

our auditor’s report.

Key Audit Matter
BEETEE

Valuation of land and buildings

1T REFZ1E41E

Refer to note 13 to the consolidated financial statements

ARG A BHREN 13

As at 31 December 2018, land and buildings held by
the Group were stated at fair value of HK$147,994,000.
Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management to determine the fair value of the land
and buildings, including the determination of valuation
techniques and the selection of different inputs in
the models. Management has engaged independent
professionally qualified valuer (the “Valuer”) whose work
has been relied on in the estimation of the fair value of
the land and buildings.

RZZE-—N\F+ZA=+—8  EXEHFzHRE
FUAFEEYIERA147,994,0008 T - EREFIELE
ANt R A G BIEETE R G EREREETREARE
ZEAUEFEN, T REF 2 ATEE - BEEDINE
BUEERBEMGEM([EER]) - WERETERG
AL REF 2 AFEE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAEERRETSE

Our key audit procedures over valuation of land and
buildings included:
HPE Lt R FEEMEH N ARETEF B

— Evaluating the competences, capabilities and objectivities
of the Valuer.

FHEHERMEE - e REBIE -

— Assessing the appropriateness of the work of the Valuer
by making enquiries and considering the relevance and
reasonableness of key assumptions and methods used,
and the relevance and accuracy of the source data used.
A4 ERNE ARG B TER & @ R Z Bz S
BREHEERAEN - SRANFERTAE R RIRE
AR N ERE L o
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Independent Auditor’s Report (ontinued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in this annual
report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (ontinued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (ontinued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (ontinued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 March 2019

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Hiu Fun

Practising Certificate number: P05709
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5E BT BT
REVENUE A 5 463,654,603 422,925,066
Cost of sales SHE R AR (404,213,739) (345,457,646)
Gross profit EH 59,440,864 77,467,420
Other income and gains H Ak A R Uz 5 16,758,435 4,828,262
Selling and distribution costs S R AR S Ak A (31,410,607) (35,069,405)
Administrative and other expenses 17 & H {th & (37,866,161) (36,600, 166)
Finance costs BB A AR 6 (1,813,977) (1,480,583)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B A % A 7 5,108,554 9,145,528
Income tax expense FTS R X 10 (3,883,934) (853,668)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A TEE AFE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS REERR
OF THE COMPANY 1,224,620 8,291,860
EARNINGS PER SHARE A TEE AFTE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS BRER
OF THE COMPANY 12
Basic BN HKO0.46 cent #{l HK3.11 cents /&l
Diluted b HKO0.46 cent &l HK3.11 cents /&1l

BRHERZERAERD A
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEE R 1,224,620 8,291,860
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hig2EUA
Items that will not be reclassified to BrEEHsEEEHZ AR
profit or loss: ZIER
Surplus arising from revaluation of T3 RIEF 2 BiH A
land and buildings 16,645,788 19,051,608
Income tax effect gt (4,256,567) (3,379,500)
12,389,221 15,672,108
Items that may be reclassified HEBEMENIEZBEAR
subsequently to profit or loss: 2B :
Exchange differences on translation HRE N E TSR E AL
of foreign operations ZIEH Z%5 (6,878,794) 9,813,915
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BRBERAFEEHEMEZEBA
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 5,510,427 25,486,023
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BRAREBEAFMEREE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EHEUWAREE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 6,735,047 33,777,883

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=ZB-—N\F+=—A=+—8
At 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$ HK$
Bi5E BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz - ENERE 13 211,573,006 214,598,441
Prepaid land lease payments TER A ER 14 10,844,406 11,579,982
Financial asset at fair value AT EET ABRER
through profit or loss ZEREE 16 680,000 -
Available-for-sale financial AEHESRIRE
investment 16 - 680,000
Total non-current assets IEmENE EAET 223,097,412 226,858,423
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 7E 17 64,120,558 73,449,981
Prepayments, deposits and BRFIE - Ze R
other receivables H A U RIE 18 7,217,855 12,184,497
Trade and bills receivables FEURBRIE R E 19 87,367,262 73,915,143
Tax recoverable AU e F IE - 719,310
Cash and cash equivalents REe RIS EEER 20 43,762,395 42,285,169
Total current assets MENEEMTT 202,468,070 202,554,100
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables FE{SBRIR 21 44,923,952 54,679,126
Accrued liabilities and JEET B & R E N FRIE
other payables 22 46,704,221 51,007,552
Interest-bearing bank and HERITREMEER
other borrowings 23 34,105,228 35,602,809
Tax payable FE R IE 2,535,010 -
Total current liabilities mENE BT 128,268,411 141,289,487
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 74,199,659 61,264,613
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERRBARS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 297,297,071 288,123,036

BRHERZERAERD A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

R=ZE—\F+=—A=+—H
At 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5L BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and mERITREMER
other borrowings 23 1,704,471 3,522,050
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEBE 25 22,018,678 17,762,111
Total non-current liabilities MBI E EMEG 23,723,149 21,284,161
Net assets BEFE 273,573,922 266,838,875
EQUITY R
Issued capital B EITRA 26 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves s 28(a) 246,873,442 240,138,395
Total equity T B RE 273,573,922 266,838,875

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EFEER_T-NAF=A-+BEHER

26 March 2019 and signed on its behalf by REEM - WA TIATRERES
Lai Pei Wor Chan Yau Wah
FEITF BRRZE
Director Director
EE E

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

Share Asset  Exchange
Issued  premium Contributed revaluation fluctuation  Retained Total
capital  account surplus reserve reserve profits equity
gg EX

BREIRA ROEEE MABR  EfRE  RIRE REEN  BRAR

HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS$ HKS

T BT BT BT BT BT BT

At 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-A-H 26,700,480 50,856,881 660,651 61303482 (6439,427) 99,978925 233,060,992

Profit for the year REERA - - - - - 8291,860 8,291,860
Other comprehensive income for the year: REERBZEMA :
Exchange differences on translation of BERINERBES

foreign operations JERER - - - - 9813915 - 9813915
Surplus arising from revaluation of BRBTRIET

land and buildings, net of tax LERRE - - - 15,672,108 - - 15,672,108

Total comprehensive income for the year FEERENALSE - - - 15,672,108 9813915 8,291,860 33,777,883

At 31 December 2017 RIE—+F+ZA=T-H 26700480 *50,856,881  *660,651 *76,975590 *3,374,488 *108,270,785 266,838,875

At 1 January 2018 RZE-\F-F-H 26,700,480 50,856,881 660,651 76,975,590 3,374,488 108,270,785 266,838,875

Profit for the year REFEH - - - - - 1,04620 1224620
Other comprehensive income for the year: AEFEMRENA :
Exchange differences on translation of BEBNEBRES

foreign operations LERER - - - - (6,878,794) - (6,878,794)
Surplus arising from revaluation of BEGTBRET

land and buidings, net of tax LEfERR - - - 12389221 - - 12,389,221

Total comprehensive income for the year AEERANNEE - - - 12,389,221 (6,878,794) 1,224,620 6,735,047

At 31 December 2018 RB-N\E+ZA=+-A 26700480 *S0856,881  *660.651 *89,364811 *(3,504,306)*109495,405 273573922

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$246,873,442 * REREUBRRARY EERFEEEFES
(2017: HK$240,138,395) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 4R A 246,873,428 T( = E — £ F ¢
240,138,395/87L) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—EB-N\fF —E—+F
Notes HKS$ HK$
BiEE BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHZHAESRA
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PR AR A 5,108,554 9,145,528
Adjustments for: AR
Finance costs & RN 6 1,813,977 1,480,583
Bank interest income RITA B WA 5 (59,521) (43,020)
Depreciation e 13 15,079,436 13,940,490
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR L A & SR 55
payments 14 297,941 290,707
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE BE&RE
plant and equipment, net W FE (346,832) (417,435)
Provision/(reversal of provision) for Y~ BB MRt
impairment loss on property, plant ZRERERE(BE)
and equipment 13 1,855,946 (526,680)
Provision/(reversal of provision) for ST SR (Bm) o R
slow-moving inventories, net 1,632,983 (1,265,303)
25,382,484 22,604,870
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEZRD,/(Em) 10,406,120 (11,858,731)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TR -« e REMRERGRIE
deposits and other receivables 2R () 5,326,064 (2,192,091)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and A PN ES
bills receivables 2 ($gm), R (12,868,004) 2,743,856
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FEBRIE Z (R ) /140 (11,904,713) 8,236,080
(Decrease)/increase in accrued liabilities st EREMENIE
and other payables Z R,/ 18 (5,433,682) 8,517,049
Cash generated from operations KEEIEEE 2 RE 10,908,269 28,051,033
Interest received EUFE 59,521 43,020
Interest paid SAFLE (1,506,053) (975,968)
Interest element on finance lease BEREN K2 FE D
payments (307,924) (504,615)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) REL (B BBFIEH 255,194 (1,064,175)
Overseas taxes paid EEINITIE (871,593) (653,229)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEE IS RN FER
— page 57 — %578 8,537,414 24,896,066
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Consolidated Statement of Cash FIows (continued)

BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Notes HK$ HK$
P 7 BT BT
Net cash flows from operating activities WETEZHGR
- page 56 — 5568 8,537,414 24,896,066
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING REZFHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWE  BELEKE
and equipment (3,612,073) (5,064,925)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWHE - BEKHE
property, plant and equipment Fr§ 518 399,840 878,276
Net cash flows used in investing WEEE 2SN RRE
activities (3,.212,233) (4,186,649)
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING REETBH2RERH
ACTIVITIES
New unsecured bank loans/revolving HERRITER AR E 8
term loans/trust receipt loans E,%’K/EE%HM‘%ET)\ 29 95,319,646 62,117,840
(Decrease)/increase in discounted bills BRIREIR 7 (Rl ) /140 29 (232,427) 31,999
Repayment of unsecured instalment EEEEESBHER
loans/bank loans/revolving term loans/ RITERBRBEHER
trust receipt loans EEBIEE = 29 (92,902,528) (59,454,910)
New finance leases raised FitmERE 29 299,510 3,480,580
Capital element of finance lease BEREN K2 EARE D
payments 29 (5,799,361) (9,344,374)
Net cash flows used in financing B AR R enE RE
activities (3,315,160) (3,168,865)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRkFEEEER
EQUIVALENTS Z B 2,010,021 17,540,552
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHzRe RIREEEER
of year 42,285,169 24,384,156
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, EREH T E  F5
net (532,795) 360,461
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHR2EEREELEEER
AT END OF YEAR 20 43,762,395 42,285,169

SEERERERAT
—E-N\EEH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

K & P International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Its registered office is located at Units 2304-06, 23rd
Floor, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) were involved in the following principal activities:

e manufacture and sale of precision parts and components
(comprising keypads, synthetic rubber and plastic components
and part); and

e design, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic
products (comprising time, weather forecasting and other
products).

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for land and buildings and a financial
asset measured at fair value through profit or loss, which have
been measured at revalued amount/fair value. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2017 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as set out in note 2.2 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of other principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 2.4
to the consolidated financial statements.

2.1
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and
profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis
as would be required if the parent had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Any investment retained in the former
subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary
are accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or
others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 S BRREEZE D
DISCLOSURES
The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/ AEBEXERTEANERB IR 2
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group: 5]/ IRIERT 2 BB SR E XS -
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement ERPEREED RN ZRS
of Share-based Payment FE25 2 EF] ZOBRETE
Transactions
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and S8 (BRI GESR INER S MFERN
Advance Consideration LRELES) RE
—ZBE225
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ERPGHREED ST A
F9%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EBUBREEL KERFEHZ
Customers 155 ON
Amendments to HKFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of BBV BEHREELF295IEE] - AR
Share-based Payment Transactions DI REG2HERT=E
The amendments provide requirements on the accounting for the ZEEET IR B 55 B MR B 5
effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement NBSAENRNZNTECPENS
of cash-settled share-based payments; share-based payment FTRIERTE  EAFEEENRNS
transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding tax MRS - ARTEMBES : ARG
obligations; and a modification to the terms and conditions of AT BV R AR S B - SR IR K
a share-based payment that changes the classification of the HRRSGNDENRESER S RS
transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled. Ho
The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant FRNZFERT 46 M R R W A ]
impact on the consolidated financial statements. BERTE o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

HK(FRIC)-Int 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration,
the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially
recognised the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration.

The adoption of the Interpretation does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments

The following terms are used in these consolidated financial
statements:

e  FVPL: fair value through profit or loss.

e  FVOCI: fair value through other comprehensive income.

e  Designated FVOCI: equity instruments measured at FVOCI.

e Mandatory FVOCI: debt instruments measured at FVOCI.

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. It introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
impairment for financial assets and hedge accounting.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments (continued)

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 9,
comparative information has not been restated and the Group
has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to financial instruments that
existed at 1 January 2018 (i.e. the date of initial application),
except as described below:

(a)

The following assessments are made on the basis of facts and
circumstances that existed at the date of initial application:

(i)  the determination of the business model within which
a financial asset is held;

(i) the designation of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVPL or, in case of financial assets, at Designated
FVOCI; and

(iii) the de-designation of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVPL.

The above resulting classification shall
retrospectively.

be applied

If, at the date of initial application, determining whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition would require undue cost or effort, a
loss allowance is recognised at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses at each reporting date until the
financial instrument is derecognised unless that financial
instrument has low credit risk at a reporting date.

For investments in equity instruments that were measured
at cost under HKAS 39, the instruments are measured at
fair value at the date of initial application.

22 St BERRKE 228 (&)

EEMBHEERNEINR: SRT A

(%)

RIBBBM B REERFIRABRIE
fffX - WBERDRBES - MAKER
EYEREEVBRELERNEIRE—
E-N\F-A-REEXERBEH)W
ERMTHE  ETXARERIN

(a)

ATRHEEREEXER B E
EOZEEMERIELA

(i WMEFBLMEEMNEBE
=

(i) ErEeMEERTHEER
FVPL: it e MEEMmM S °
BIETEFVOC] : &

(i) BURIEE RFVPLVE B E E
HERATE -

PRELZSBEREPER -

RERERBH WRFEAEE
PXAN S TR LARESE B & X HERREY
EERRERBERZN  BER
BAEEBERS AHERSER
2HRMEEEENEREERR
ItH#ERZeMITARLE - BRIFZ
CRIAERSAHAEEER

LA
ag
ZN

o

BRI B 5 @ 3 R B 30RR A
AHEHRETARENE &
ST AN EREM A BRAFE
B -

K & P International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018




e EHRRME e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B ERREEZ2E (%)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments (continued) BEREMBmELERNZENR: @ T A
(%)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous HEAERTECR BB A A E e a1t

accounting policies and the transition approach are set out below: B NRE AT

(i)  Classification and measurement of financial assets and () =HEERTHBEEZSHE
financial liabilities A=
The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no significant effect on the RN S I 153k & XE QI S5 957 B A
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial EEeHEEZIERMAETE
liabilities. EAERTE -
The following table reconciles the original measurement TEREBAEER = —N\F— H
categories and carrying amounts under HKAS 39 to the —E%%ﬁﬁﬂé?&%ﬁ% oy
new measurement categories and carrying amounts under BIZE395% TH R A s A5 RER
HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s financial assets as at EEEBBYEREERFESRT
1 January 2018. BUFTET BRI RAREEETTHE
As at 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—-NE—HA—H

Measurement category and carrying
amount under HKFRS 9

ERRBHRELERZEIRET
2 BERRERE
Carrying amount
Measurement category under under HKAS 39 Amortised
HKAS 39 BRETEN cost FVPL
RS ERE3R T 25t BER 39K T ZIRAEE SR A
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Available-for-sale JRHESHRE
financial investment
Club membership eHek 630,000 = 630,000
Loans and receivables EXREKNE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSEEE 42,285,169 42,285,169 =
Trade and bills receivables IEH&EEIE&%‘% 73,915,143 73,915,143 -
Prepayments, deposits BN Ze K
and other receivables ,J‘M&E\Hﬁln 8 748,356 748,356 =
117,628,668 116,948,668 680,000

BRHERZERAERD A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments (continued)

7

(i)

Classitication and measurement of financial assets and
financial lrabilities (continued)

The club membership that was previously classified as
available-for-sale financial investment amounting to
HK$680,000 is now reclassified to FVPL. It does not meet
the criteria to be classified as amortised cost or Mandatory
FVOCI in accordance with HKFRS 9, because its cash flows
do not represent solely payment of principal and interest
and it is not equity investment.

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with
the “expected credit loss” (“ECL"”) model. The ECL model
requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk associated
with a financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier
than under the “incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS
39.

The group applies the new ECL model to the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables).

Further details on the accounting policy for accounting
for credit losses have been set out in notes 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statement.

22 St BERRKE 228 (&)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces, among others, HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 which
specified the revenue recognition arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services and the accounting for construction
contracts respectively. The Standard establishes a comprehensive
framework for revenue recognition and certain costs from
contracts with customers within its scope. It also introduces a
cohesive set of disclosure requirements that would result in an
entity providing users of financial statements with comprehensive
information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts
with customers.

The Group has elected to apply the cumulative effect transition
method and recognised the cumulative effect of initial adoption
(if any) as an adjustment to the opening balance of components
of equity at 1 January 2018 (i.e. the date of initial application).
Therefore, the comparative information has not been restated
for the effect of HKFRS 15.

In addition, the Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
only to contracts that were not completed at 1 January 2018 in
accordance with the transitional provision therein.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs 23 EEMEMAER 2T BIE

HEZER
RERUSHAMEREZ D - AKE
TRREFA TS SR FARER
IR A IE MR AR 2 AT 42T
2 EBIFRERR -

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which the
Group has not early adopted.

Annual Improvements

2015-2017 Cycle'

BEMBHREEN 2 —T—hFE

to HKFRSs FESEER T FRE
HKFRS 16 Leases' ERUBREEN HE
F165%
HK (IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax B8 (BBRIEHRE HERET T
Treatments! REZEY)-RE
235
Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee benefits' EREEAE195 EER/F
ZIEET
Amendments to HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and EBGEAFE28 REBRENRRE
Joint Ventures! ZAEE] EihE
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with BEMBHREEL BEBAWMERER
Negative Compensation’ B ZIERT BRI
Amendments to HKASs 1 Definition of Material? EBSFERE IR ERIEER?
and 8 K85k Z187]
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business? BEBVBREER EHER?
3% 2185]
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts* BREMBHREEL  REEH
E175%
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BEVBMEEN REEHEHEE
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FI0REEBES NAHAERE
Associate or Joint Venture® HRIFE28R21EF] ZHEZEEHE
T E®
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 ! RZZB-NEF—A—BRERAGZFE
HARR A K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 ? R-ZB_ZFE A ARZEKRARZFE
HAFE AR
2 Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of ? RZZF-TF—A—RR2RHARNE—
the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 B4R BRI R SR Y S 2 12 35 AR BV MR BB AR 2R
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 fORZER A BRgZRRARCEE
HARE A K
5 The effective date to be determined > ZERBERE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified that some aspects of HKFRS 16 may have
an impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has not been substantially completed for HKFRS 16,
the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Group, and further impacts
may be identified before the standards are initially applied in the
Group's interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June
2019. The Group may also change its accounting policy elections,
including the transition options, until the standards are initially
applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for property, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the consolidated income statement over
the period of the lease.

The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from
operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between now
and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs 23 EEMEMAER 2T BIE

(continuedq)

HKFRS 16: Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The standard offers different transition options
and practical expedients, including the practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. If this practical expedient
is chosen, the Group will apply the new definition of a lease
in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after
the date of initial application. If the practical expedient is not
chosen, the Group will need to reassess all of its decisions about
which existing contracts are, or contain, leases, using the new
definition. Depending on whether the Group elects to adopt
the standard retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective
method of recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at the date of initial application, the
Group may or may not need to restate comparative information
for any changes in accounting resulting from the reassessment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXREHEHERME

POLICIES

Subsidiaries KRl NG!

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The MiEB AR Ty ANEBATIEHIZ B o fHA
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to S B —(EE TS 2 7] B F) o A dE
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the Rk = HER - WHEDBBELZ
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. BREBENZEZSOHE  BJKER
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and Wy TR A diE - (WEEERIERE
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of TER—IERZIEEGERA XTI ES)
the elements of control. K - B ANEE ST EEE DA

ABALE R °

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is MiE AR 2B RIRK AR EEET
presented within these notes, an investment in subsidiary is IR - HEMRARA R 2 MBARR R
stated at cost less impairment loss. Al o
Related parties BEAL
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group. AT AERNERAEENEASNE
B o
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related (@ ZALTAEUTALTHUATALR
to the Group if that person: FE 2R RN E RS AT

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () ¥Rk EEIERIAREER

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy BREFBEEEAFES ; 5k

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) BAEEHAEEFRAE
Group or of the parent of the Group. EEEEKE o

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) ZERWSK ANERGEEATH
conditions applies: A THIEREME -

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEEBNAEBEAHEREER
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and ZRKEAT(ENB AT - M
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). BRAILKARHBARAE

HHRERE) -

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i —AERERS —HEMNEKS
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of HEELE(KS—EEBAK
a group of which the other entity is a member). BERAIZEEETKE AT

ZHE A ERE) o
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (i) MEEBEAERE=F2
BEME o

BRHERZERAERD A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 EXRETBRBE (#)

Related parties (continued) BEAL(E)
(b) (continued) (b) (#&)
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) —TIEE‘E?L E=HEBEBZAE
other entity is an associate of the third entity. HhE ME—ERAEZSE

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

ZHERZBENR] -

.ﬁ@@Zamﬁﬁ
2 BER 12 12 A 5T &
$%@$%@%zﬁ% ﬁ

FHERASASESLER
g E

RUEHEE TFHRRAHE
AEBEBRE -

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) BEERX @I AT
identified in (a). il sk L Rl o
(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence (vii) B/‘( Y)IB AT A A $ 3% &
over the entity or is a member of the key management BESATE NN EXE R
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). (‘JZ* BER2BAR)ZEE
EEEIZKE o
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZERIZEEMBEELEE 2
part, provides key management personnel services to EREI2F=WNEIEIR NS N
the Group or to the parent of the Group. EEZEARREFTESE
ABIRFS o

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

AT OB AR R TE IR E AR T
RHBTEZATERIZALTRE LS

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include: EREKRBILBIE :

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (@) ZALTZTEREBRIREZE:

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and (b) ZALTZERBIRERH 2 TFL:

)54

() dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or (€ ZALHZALZEBHREE
domestic partner. HZRE -

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries EEEATHES  BE AT Fjﬁ.ﬁ%

of the associate and a joint venture includes subsidiaries of the EHB AR MELELEBREZEE

joint venture.

EMBAR -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the year in which
they are incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Land and buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the
fair value at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are performed
frequently to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset
does not differ materially from its carrying amount. Changes in
the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. Decrease in valuation
are first offset against increase on earlier valuations in respect
of the same asset and thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to
the extent of the deficit previously charged and thereafter to
revaluation reserve.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 EXRETTHRBE (&)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

As the Group’s lease payments for its leasehold land and buildings
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements at the inception of the lease because similar land
and buildings are not sold or leased separately, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the leasehold land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2% t0 2.7%
2.5% to 30%
10% to 25%
10% to 30%

Land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
Moulds 20% to 33.33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of their expected useful lives or the terms of the leases.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. On disposal of
a revaluated asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

W% BERRKRE(E)

mRAU L R FIWES R HERH
- MAREZ D REFHEFTREE
REERBE A SED R T i MET
BBy - BEEMEFIEAREREAAY
¥ - HERREAN L REFHEK
o
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%55 M i 23 10% %25%

R~ EEBER 10% 230%
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HA 20%%33.33%
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group are accounted for as finance
leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases. At
the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as finance lease obligation. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the consolidated income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease term.

Rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments
and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the
Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial asset and
either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset but it does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and measurement

Applicable from 1 January 2018

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant
financing component) are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at FVPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at
their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) measured
at amortised cost; (ii) Mandatory FVOCI; (iii) Designated FVOCI;
or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group changes its business model for
managing them, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first annual reporting period
following the change in the business model (the “reclassification
date”):

1)  Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

1)

2)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses arising from impairment,
derecognition or through the amortisation process are
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include cash
and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables and deposits
and other receivables.

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are not
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at FVPL, and financial assets resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are held
within a business model other than held-to-collect or held-
to-collect-and-for-sales, or whose contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. They are carried at fair value,
with any resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss,
which does not include any dividend or interest earned on
the financial assets.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the
near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking on initial recognition; or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract

or not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

The Group’s financial assets measured at FVPL include club
membership.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Applicable before 1 January 2018

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, or as available-for-
sale financial investments, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date (the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset). Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group classified its financial assets into one of the following
categories before 1 January 2018:

1) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and bills receivable, and deposits and other receivables
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and are
not held for trading. They are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, except where receivables
are interest-free loans and without any fixed repayment
term or the effect of discounting would be insignificant. In
such case, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment
loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition over the period
to maturity. Gains and losses arising from derecognition,
impairment or through the amortisation process are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Applicable before 1 January 2018 (continued)

2)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this category
or not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealised gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive
income and credited to the available-for-sale financial
investment valuation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in other operating income, or the investment
is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale financial investment
valuation reserve to the consolidated income statement in
finance costs. Interest and dividends earned are reported
as interest income and dividend income in the consolidated
income statement respectively.

When the fair value of unlisted investment cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial investments in the near term
is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, if management has the ability and intention to
hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 EXRETTHRBE (&)

ERMITAE)
EHEE(E)
DEERAE ()

— T N\F-H-BZRERE)

2)

AR EEBRE

AHHESRIREREERILE
SR TFTOEREMERMEER
RIZETESREE -

RYIEHERE AL E2RK
ERAFEEE ERERK
3B RN E A 2 WA R
Mt ARAHHESRREGE
il BEEZREDHER &
By RET s IR R FER R EL A
BN - SR E W HETE SR
B ERMRFHERSHTHH
ETRREGERBENIEE
RENBERZBEKRANA - Tk
Rz MERBED 2R B
WA BB AR & FER

fi3E EMIRE 2 A FEETER
A% E  RRRQZKREES
BERFEEMNGEERXER
RN ZBERNZE G2
BEMETRER & B R (A R AR AT
HRFEE AIRFEFIIRK
ARALFIREE RS -

AEEEeHEEENHALER
HEESREBENGENREER
BINAREE - HAKEEEDH
MIERT - RIS AE R
AREHETREE BMEEE
BRENARAZEARERLHRKK
EIMBAELEE  AKEA
REEEBIBELEREE -

BRHERZERAERD A

—E-NEEH




e BEHRRME e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9

Applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
("ECL") on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost
to which the impairment requirements apply in accordance with
HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments as detailed below,
at each reporting date, the Group measures a loss allowance
for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if
the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EXREHBRBE (#)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SRMIAE)
Impairment of financial assets and other items under BEBUBBREEREIRT 22
HKFRS 9 (continued) EERERAMEER ()
Applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued) BT \F—A—A%ERAE)
Measurement of ECL (continued) FRRIE BE 1R 2 (48)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial B EEEEHRMNER 2RI A
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more eRE Ty —EZEEE HEEE
shared credit risk characteristics: R BE T o A
(i) past due information () BEBHAER
(ii) nature of instrument iy THEM4E
(iii) nature of collateral (i) HHPEE
(iv) industry of debtors (iv) fEFAITE
(v) geographical location of debtors () BEAMELE
Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect FEEEERSREHRRET = - UK
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since MEEAEALLRTAEERRRE
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance BREL - EEBEZHHEcHT AR
are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss B2 BEFE 2R AR EIERE
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the = ARFERR » MEMR 98 FIIEFVOCIZ BB
financial instrument, except in the case of Mandatory FVOCI, the HEREME2ERAER RN AT EER
loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and R (A[EE ) o

accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial instrument
that meets any of the following criteria:

(i) information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group); or

(ii) there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. Irrespective of the
outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual

cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing components
or otherwise for which the Group applies the practical expedient
not to account for the significant financing components, the
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The
Group recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at
each reporting date and has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 EXRETTHRBE (&)

TRMIR®)

BEEBUNBHEEREIR T Z2EH
BERERAMER ()

BT \F— A HEERA#E)
EIERER
LRI AREREEERMBM :

(i) HEORRIK:

(i) BHABRKENREHRAMEH
BHESRERE K

(i) 8252 20 0 400 T S TR TR 2
B ife R U5 BIS3E T BT R A K
R R EERES -

BHIEEE R

FLBMARAEM S - BIEEAREK DK
EARBEEBEEZFT T AERRE
Rt - AEBERBBEI AT ERBIE
EER - AEERNSHE R HREHE
HEEEBRRERAEERME  UREHA
EEERBRLRETRERER - X3iE
A REBIREAS AT ERFETT

BRHERZERAERD A

—E-NEEH




e BEHRRME e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidences that a
financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about
the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash
flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The
Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal advice
if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Applicable before 1 January 2018

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period, whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset
(anincurred “loss event”), has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Applicable before 1 January 2018 (continued)

1)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future expected credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans, together
with the associated allowance are written off when there
is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance cost
in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Applicable before 1 January 2018 (continued)

2)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
consolidated income statement, is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. When there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss (measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the income statement) is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the durations or extend to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its costs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Applicable before 1 January 2018 (continued)

2) Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-
sale, the impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the
amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
(measured as the difference between the amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the consolidated income
statement). Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the consolidated income statement, if the
increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments
and on a trade date basis.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus,
in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL, transaction
costs that are direct attributable to the issue of the financial
liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables
and loans and borrowings including interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings. All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises cost
of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling prices
in the ordinary course of business less any estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period of the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
generally within three months of maturity at acquisition, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For classification in the consolidated statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents represent assets similar in
nature to cash and which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to assess whether there
is any indication that its property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land lease payments may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately, except where the relevant asset is carried
at revalued amount in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease in accordance to the accounting policy
relevant to that asset.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income in profit
or loss immediately, except where the relevant asset is carried at
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase in accordance to the accounting
policy relevant to the asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are
charged against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
the amount provided is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. Where the
Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period in the countries where
the Group operates and generated taxable income.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
end of the reporting period.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 EXRETTHRBE (&)

Bt

i AN SR B FLE E S MARRE AT
SHEEEL - HETZETRATES
BRENZ 2 ERRL - RdZEEZ
SRR TR SR - AIRREE - B
BRBB XN IREESHEREER
BB T AL - BEDINEEREH
KRB WIEHFRE  URBER 2 &
Efhat - MERREIFEER  BE
2B ARTEERPME LR
1B - HAKEERBEEEN - AIE
NHERAREBEE  EENER L5
EENETT TR -

FRi&%

PISHEERAHREENIR - AEBRE
RIMERIHB MY - TwmehERE
fEHRARE K ERRARER -

AHEESEBRNAPRAEENLE
& - TIRE BIE RN HwEMRABHIE
R R R BUE - WAREBE R ER
RMELZERBGN - RBRRE
NFHREEEANSELE -

RmERR - BEEBBEORELER
MR EERREREEM
MAFEEREER  RRABERRETEH
TR -

SEERERERAT
—E-N\EEH




e BEHRRME e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Applicable from 1 January 2018

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods

The nature of the goods provided by the Group comprises sales
of precision parts and components and consumer electronic
products.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods promised
in a contract with a customer and identifies as a performance
obligation each promise to transfer to the customer either:

(@) a good (or a bundle of goods) that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods that are substantially the same and
that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

A good that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of the
following criteria are met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the good either on its own
or together with other resources that are readily available
to the customer (i.e. the good is capable of being distinct);
and

(b) the Group's promise to transfer the good to the customer is
separately identifiable from other promises in the contract
(i.e. the promise to transfer the good is distinct within the
context of the contract).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good (i.e. an
asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the
customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good over time and, therefore,
satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over
time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

(b) the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example, work in progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the promised asset. In determining
when the transfer of control occurs, the Group considers the
concept of control and such indicators as legal title, physical
possession, right to payment, significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.

Sales of precision parts and components and consumer
electric products are recognised at a point in time at which
the customer obtains the control of the promised asset, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered
to customers and the title is passed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. The Group
recognises revenue from sale of goods generally at a point in
time, being when control is passed. There is a deviation with
Interim Report for the 6 months period ended 30 June 2018 in
which revenue was recognised over time. The Group assessed the
deviation does not have any material impact in the consolidated
financial statements.

Applicable before 1 January 2018

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, on the following basis:

From the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold.

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 EXRETTHRBE (&)

WA ()
BE-Z-N\F-A-BRER#E)

EENBRELRNFISKKBELE
#Z YN (&)

WA FERBF 2] ()

AEBEDEPRATBUHHRELNS
155%  MAMERAMZ LR Z R FE
RUERABH—T—\F—A—BH#
W o AR EI PSR — By ] A (B R 12 L
BRH)UHEERERLA - EEE
EE-N\FRA=THIERERAZS
HHEFEZRARBRERER - A%
BT AE L 2 R AR & MR A AT
EXFE-

AN S = D 1

WAERAEE L EF B RS EM S
Ko R as B AN (1128 A ) AT LA AJ S 3t
BRI T EERER -

HERER  ERARZERRRKLE
EREN  MAKEHCHEZERY
BREF-REBERBMIEESEY
BRI -

hil

BRHERZERAERD A

—E-NEEH




e BEHRRME e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, the contract is presented as a contract asset, excluding any
amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely, if a customer
pays consideration, or the Group has a right to an amount
of consideration that is unconditional, before the Group
transfers a good to the customer, the contract is presented as
a contract liability when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Group’s right to
consideration that is unconditional or only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either a
net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. Contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

For sales of precision parts and components and consumer
electronic products, it is common for the Group to receive from the
customer the whole or some of the contractual payments before
the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition for
such transactions). The Group recognises a contract liability until
it is recognised as revenue. During that period, any significant
financing components, if applicable, will be included in the
contract liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the date
on which the entitlement of relevant employees to the award
is no longer conditional on the satisfaction of any non-market
vesting conditions (“vesting date”). During the vesting period,
the number of share options that is expected to vest ultimately is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve within
equity.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest
because non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met where awards include a market or non-vesting
condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions
are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the
minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the
unmodified award, provided as the original terms of the award
are met. An additional expense, measured as at the date of
modification, is recognised for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 EXRETTHRBE (&)

LRGBS 2R5 (&)

AR i E R 5 2 A B R AN 2 1B
BEReENEIEBIRTZHERER B
EHREETBAERIMFMERE
REMAZEZEM B EER )
Bl - REBHA - FMABERSKE
B2BEREHE  RNBATHEERYR
AAFEEZARENEMNEF 2B
BRINRR,ETA - WAREFHERRAZ
i o

RERGEGRBZ AN T SRARFX -
AR EIETIHREA R HRB &M -
¥R eI Z M SR IR B R - T
EREIZMSIERBHRITZXSY
BRGIERBRIE - VA EREMA
BREAR SR EM -

2T R IRRERR > RPX
AV ER T ARIERTHRB 12 B F
BE BN BMRETIRK - fiE
REE BHEE - EAEESRURN
N2 RSB AFEBEREM 3K
HEEHREMAE - HIERZFEE
FEREINF °

ERBENEE B RIEEINERB B
ARTTE - ABERBRERERER
SRBEBRERBET

SEERERERAT
—E-N\EEH




e BEHRRME e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. Share-based payment transactions in which
the Company grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees
are accounted for as an increase in value of investment in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods or
services received, except where the fair value cannot be reliably
estimated, in which case they are measured at the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair value
is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the services.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for
all of its eligible employees. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the consolidated income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having
a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal. The termination benefits for the employees of the
Group's subsidiaries which operate in the Mainland China are
charged to profit or loss when they become payable based on
the requirement of the labour law in the Mainland China.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded by entities in the Group at
their respective functional currency spot rates at the date of the
transactions first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the end of the
reporting period. All differences are taken to the consolidated
income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into Hong Kong
dollars, the presentation currency. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period and their
income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at the average exchange rates. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision
also affects future periods.

Key source of estimation uncertainty
Inventories

The Group does not have a general provisioning policy on
inventories based on ageing given that the inventories are not
subject to frequent wear and tear or frequent technological
changes. However, as a significant portion of the working capital
is devoted to inventories, operational procedures have been
in place to monitor this risk. The Group reviews the inventory
ageing listing on a periodical basis for those aged inventories. This
involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory
items with the respective net realisable value. The purpose is
to ascertain whether allowance is required to be made in the
consolidated financial statements for any obsolete and slow-
moving items. In addition, physical counts on all inventories are
carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether
the allowance needs to be made in respect of any obsolete and
defective inventories identified.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investment in subsidiaries has
suffered any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 and follows
the guidance of HKFRS 9 in determining whether amounts due
from these entities are impaired. Details of the approach are stated
in the respective accounting policies. The assessment requires an
estimation of future cash flows, including expected dividends,
from the assets and the selection of appropriate discount rates.
Future changes in financial performance and position of these
entities would affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause
the adjustments of their carrying amounts.

3.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Determining an appropriate amount of an impairment requires
an estimation of recoverable amounts of relevant property, plant
and equipment or the respective cash generating units (“CGU")
to which the property, plant and equipment belong, which is the
higher of value in use and fair value less cost of disposal. If there
is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable
amount shall be estimated for individual asset. If it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the
Group shall determine the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the relevant assets or the CGU and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. The discount rate represents
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or the CGU for which
the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected or there
is a downward revision of future estimated cash flows due to
unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances, an additional
impairment loss may arise. At 31 December 2017, impairment
losses of HK$4,309,105 were recognised for property, plant
and equipment in consumer electronics products segment. At
31 December 2018, the Group had written off a portion of
the impaired property, plant and equipment with associated
impairment losses amounted to HK$1,611,328. The carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment was HK$211,573,006
(2017: HK$214,598,441).

Valuation of land and buildings

The Group’s land and buildings included in property, plant
and equipment are stated at their revalued amounts in the
consolidated statement of financial position, which are assessed
annually by management with reference to valuations performed
by independent professionally qualified valuers. In determining
the revalued amounts, the valuers have based on the method
of valuations which involve certain estimates. In relying on the
valuation reports, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuations
is reflective of the current market conditions. The carrying
amounts of the land and buildings at 31 December 2018 were
HK$147,994,000 (2017: HK$138,893,000).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for trade
receivables by using various inputs and assumptions including risk
of a default and expected loss rate. The estimation involves high
degree of uncertainty which is based on the Group’s historical
information, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of trade receivables.
Details of the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL
are set out in note 35(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on its products and has three reportable operating
segments as follows:

(a) the precision parts and components segment comprises the
manufacture and sale of precision parts and components
comprising keypads, synthetic rubber and plastic components
and parts;

(b) the consumer electronic products segment comprises the
design, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic
products comprising time, weather forecasting and other
products; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises the Group’s
long term investments, together with corporate income and
expense items.

Management, the chief operating decision makers, monitors
the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment results, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that bank interest income and
finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the cost of sales and are eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. BREFTEER#)

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE=ZE—-N\F+=-H=+—HLEE
Precision Consumer
parts and electronic Corporate
components products and others Total
bt ETHER AR EM @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue: 2EBA
Sales to external customers HINEPHE 423,565,768 40,088,835 - 463,654,603
Intersegment sales NHBHEEE 857,051 55,208 - 912,259
Reportable segment revenue AEFERA 424,422,819 40,144,043 - 464,566,862
Reconciliation: FET -
Elimination of intersegment sales WE D EEHE 438 (912,259)
Revenue A 463,654,603
Segment results: PERE: 17,584,511 (7,908,570)  (2,812,931) 6,863,010
Reconciliation: B -
Bank interest income BITHEUA 59,521
Finance costs BEMRA (1,813,977)
Profit before tax BRBADE A 5,108,554
Other segment information: HitpBEH
Other income and gains, net of HiWA R - BRER
foreign exchange gain Yogs - 5 9,379,755 1,556,391 287,752 11,223,898
Depreciation wE (11,783,683) (415) (3,295,338)  (15,079,436)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of items of HENE  BERZEZ
property, plant and equipment, net (B1B),/ ks 58 (50,934) 397,766 = 346,832
Provision for slow-moving inventories, Wi S - FE
net (427,566) (1,205,417) - (1,632,983)
Surplus on revaluation of land THRETER B
and buildings credited to other AEMZEKIA
comprehensive income 5,455,788 - 11,190,000 16,645,788
Amortisation of prepaid land lease B LA E S
payments (297,941) - - (297,941)
Minimum lease payments under THREFEPEER
operating leases on land and MR
buildings (4,627,690) (378,221) (176,100) (5,182,011)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net 5z (B8 - 5,670,766 641,788 (778,017) 5,534,537
Provision for impairment losses on 0% BERZENE
property, plant and equipment EEEE (1,855,946) - - (1,855,946)
Mainland China staff compensation RmEER T EAER
due to closure of factories THES (13,392,309)  (2,512,734) - (15,905,043)
Capital expenditure BARY (3,603,743) = (8.330)  (3,612,073)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., REFEER(B)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ—+tFt+-_A=1+—HItFE
Precision Consumer
parts and electronic Corporate
components products and others Total
RERTHMY BT HEm E R EA @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue: 2EBA
Sales to external customers HINEPIHE 371,591,216 51,333,850 - 422,925,066
Intersegment sales A BHE 5,778,568 335,923 = 6,114,491
Reportable segment revenue PERERA 377,369,784 51,669,773 - 429,039,557
Reconciliation: A7 -
Elimination of intersegment sales WIS HRIHE < 3 (6,114,491)
Revenue LN 422,925,066
Segment results: PERE: 19,707,366 (7,307,932)  (1,816,343) 10,583,091
Reconciliation: B -
Bank interest income RITHBMA 43,020
Finance costs BEMRA (1,480,583)
Profit before tax BREADR A 9,145,528
Other segment information: HitaBER
Other income and gains Hip A Rizs 3,241,438 1,557,472 29,352 4,828,262
Depreciation il (10,755,017) (14,031) (3,171,442)  (13,940,490)
Gain on disposal of items of property, ~ HEWE - BERREZ
plant and equipment, net Wegs - F R 106,752 310,683 - 417,435
(Provision)/reversal of provision for RETE(RE) /BE
slow-moving inventories, net ik (32,820) 1,298,123 - 1,265,303
Surplus on revaluation of land T RIEFER 2 BB
and buildings credited to other AEMZEBA
comprehensive income 4,581,346 - 14,470,262 19,051,608
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR AR E R
payments (290,707) - = (290,707)
Minimum lease payments under THREFHEPEEH
operating leases on land and b
buildings (4,534,482) (2,939,753) (181,620) (7,655,855)
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net X (ER), W - 58 (5,264,363)  (1,040,400) 870,591 (5,434,172)
Reversal of impairment losses on 0% - BERRERE
property, plant and equipment EER D = 526,680 = 526,680
Capital expenditure BARX (5,036,675) - (28,250)  (5,064,925)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, BEZBER®)
Geographical information b & B R

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) HIIEFKA
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F T —tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong &5 33,000,376 26,586,406
Mainland China R B K RE 80,793,916 72,419,950
Japan and other Asian countries H 7 & H i 58 M Bl K 173,487,957 143,860,200
North America b =M 41,103,697 37,434,439
South America M 8,277,206 10,406,219
Europe BM 120,649,914 126,544,015
Other countries EBIR 6,341,537 5,673,837
463,654,603 422,925,066

The revenue information above is based on the geographical
location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

A ERAERHZ R P A i &

e

(b) ¥ FBEE

2018 2017

—ZE-N\F —E—+F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Hong Kong BB 76,711,487 67,972,123
Mainland China RlETpN175 145,579,088 157,941,834
Other countries H R 126,837 264,466
222,417,412 226,178,423

N EFERBEEBRIZEEME
WEE o BENEFIEFVPLZ &
MEE MHEESRIEE -

The non-current assets information above is based on the
geographical location of assets and excludes the financial
asset at FVPL/available-for-sale financial investment.

IREFEHR

N4 2 106,379,226/ TL( — 8B —+
F 180,117,012 0 ) IR A » T3R8
BEEHHLEN—ZRF » WhASE
B AZR10% °

Information about a major customer

Revenue of HK$106,379,226 (2017: HK$80,117,012) was derived
from a single customer of the precision parts and components
segment that contributing over 10% of the Group’s revenue for
the year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts, during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is
as follows:

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

WA - WA R W
WARRAFEAHEEmNETFEH
FRRENE ST -

REBEWA ~ EABA R #5440
™

2018 2017
—E-N\EF = —+t5F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT

Revenue from contracts with customers &B I IEHREREAFE 155521 F

within the scope of HKFRS 15 RREEFSHZKA

Sale of goods EmiHE

Other income and gains H g A & Wz

Bank interest income RITALEUA

Tooling charge income RERA

Sale of scrap BERHHE

Sale of samples BmiHE

Gain on disposal of items of property, plant H&E¥ZE  BE RREZ
and equipment, net Wz - VR

Foreign exchange gain, net &5 e - 5

Reversal of impairment losses on property, %1% - BEM&REZ
plant and equipment BEET B[

Incentive received* S P

Sales of other materials EyE S

Compensation income ERA

Overpayment from customers BPZNHIE

Others HAh,

Total revenue, other income and gains  ZUWA - HMURA K WS

The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31
December 2018 that was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year is HK$10,696,555.

* During the year, the Group received an electricity charges relief in
Renminbi (“RMB"”) of 166,746 (approximately HK$198,427) from the
power supply company in Shenzhen, Mainland China. In 2017, the
Group received an one-off incentive of RMB224,919 (approximately
HK$258,657) from the local government in Shenzhen, Mainland China.

463,654,603 422,925,066

59,521 43,020
555,169 339,090
5,665,308 941,829
3,191,297 1,657,755
346,832 417,435
5,534,537 =
= 526,680
198,427 258,657
- 105,368

- 73,583
596,208 =
611,136 464,845
16,758,435 4,828,262

480,413,038 427,753,328

2 E—N\EFE+-_A=+—HIEE
BRZWALE  HAhaERFEIZE
48 1&5/510,696,555/8 7T °

* OKFEER AEBKPRBEKEZRY
BERA AU E166,746 AR EE(T AR )
(89198278 TL)BEEBRBE - R=ZF —
+F - REBEYEP EARERYIH T B
I B — K M 5% B) 3X224,919A R (4
258,657787T) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RBERAE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEXRB DT
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts REFAEEZRITERK
wholly repayable within five years BHXAE 1,506,053 975,968
Interest on finance leases REREER S 307,924 504,615
1,813,977 1,480,583
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBADGEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBBRFADE ML (GTA):
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration 8§ T (BHEEEH &
— note 8)*: —HFEE8)"
Wages and salaries ITERH® 127,965,246 134,241,976
Mainland China staff compensation ER = R 2 R EIREES T
due to closure of factories HES 15,905,043 -
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes :E{K4gF 5t 23k 14,656,060 15,291,459
158,526,349 149,533,435
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEXAE 402,580,756 346,722,949
Provision/(reversal of provision) for TS SR (BEm) -
slow-moving inventories, net* R 1,632,983 (1,265,303)
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT BN & 1,198,463 1,197,338
Depreciation® e 15,079,436 13,940,490
Provision/(reversal of provision) for ME - BEMREZBE
impairment losses on property, plant EEEE (BE)
and equipment 1,855,946 (526,680)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments F&1st 4 b0 & i 8 297,941 290,707
Minimum lease payments under operating — +ith M iEF 7 DK
leases on land and buildings* HEME 5,182,011 7,655,855
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net &5 (kas) 518 - F5E (5,534,537) 5,434,172
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HEWE - BENFZEZ
and equipment, net Iz - JFEE (346,832) (417,435)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BRBAER (&)

#  The staff cost amounting to HK$124,824,145 (2017: HK$118,938,927), fOKRFEZE TR XE124,824,1458 T
depreciation amounting to HK$12,130,131 (2017: HK$11,045,725) and (== — + % :118,938,927% 7T ) *
minimum lease payments under operating leases on land and buildings WEEE12,130,131B (=T — £ F:
amounting to HK$4,577,276 (2017: HK$7,143,189) for the year are 11,045,725 70 ) R L RIEF 7 DK
included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement. EHEMERL,577,2768 L (—E—+H5F:

7,143,189 L) E B EHFAMEBERZ
[EHERARIR o

S The provision/(reversal of provision) for slow-moving inventories for the & KREE 7 REEERE (BO)Ees

year is included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement. e MBERZIHERAIA -
8. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF 8. EHEERANEHR

DIRECTORS

Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules IR ETIEH RES A SO TR E R

and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows: BESMENT

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
(i) Independent non-executive directors (i) BUHHTEE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors AKEEATN FEILIERTT
during the year were as follows: BEE28e
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 333,936 333,936
Leung Man Kay (resigned on RNERZZT—+F
3 July 2017) + A=HEHE) = 166,968
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =2 2] 333,936 333,936
Mak Kwai Wing (appointed on BER(NZZE—tF
3 July 2017) tA=HZMT) 333,936 166,968
1,001,808 1,001,808
There were no other emoluments payable to the REFZ AN EEN TELIENT
independent non-executive directors during the year EE2AMME(ZT — L F -
(2017: Nil). &) -
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HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

8.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(ii) Executive directors

8. FRESEMNER#)

(a)

Exme @)
(i) BITEE

Contributions
to retirement

Discretionary benefit Other Total
Fees Salaries bonus scheme allowances remuneration
RHER
e ¢ BERa SIS Hitn28 AHHM
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2018 —E-N\F
Executive directors:  ${TES :
Lai Pei Wor ?ﬁiiﬁ‘ﬂ - 2,585,921 573,798 18,000 60,000 3,237,719
Chan Yau Wah R - 2,133,807 626,456 - 59722 2,819,985
- 4,719,728 1,200,254 18,000 119,722 6,057,704
2017 —E-+F
Executive directors: WT%? :
Lai Pei Wor RBEM - 2,486,458 - 18,000 50,000 2,554,458
Chan Yau Wah Bk - 2,035,982 - - 18,146 2,054,128
- 4,522,440 - 18,000 68,146 4,608,586
There was no arrangement under which a director REERNIBMEFHEEZTHA
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any B R E ok B B EE A B o
remuneration during the year.
(b) Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour (b) LEEARAZTHBAZENR - E8
of directors MREMRZS
There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour RRABRAER AT F
of the directors of the Company that were entered into or FUNEERZTAZER £8
subsisted during the year (2017: Nil). HREMRG(ZE—+F: £F) -
(c) Directors’ material interest in transactions, (c) EZERXRZ  ZHIEHNZE

arrangements or contracts

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion that no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company or a
connected entity of the director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2017: Nil).

KR

REZER BEEAR/REAFER
HARFENERERE - BREFE
RRARER—HBBARAER
ZEARS  ZHERAKHNAERR
AEFHAEFZREERNAT
BRAERIMEZEAER(ZF
—tEFE) -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. INERSHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two REBERAUGEHEESEMU(ZE
(2017: two) executive directors, details of whose remuneration —tF MDA TES - FHEEIR
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of EXHIFES e B N =ML ( B —+F : =
the remaining three (2017: three) non-director, highest paid ) EREHZIEEREE 2 HMFR
employees for the year are as follows: T:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ EAF & « EZRREYH 3,224,572 3,216,629
Discretionary bonus BB IEAL 819,511 -
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes &R RFEFIEHEI K 36,000 18,000
4,080,083 3,234,629
The remuneration of non-director, highest paid employees is B2 EEEEE 2 MFTE A R 1n
within the following bands: T ¢

Number of employees

EEAE
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —ET—tF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 #£21,000,000/5 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018 T2 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0018 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T 1 -
3 3
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

10. INCOME TAX 10. FTBH

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2018. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Taxes on assessable profits outside Hong Kong have been provided
on the estimated assessable profits for the year, in respect of the
Group's operations outside Hong Kong, at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

R-ZT—N\FE=F=-+—HH AL
FeRBR(ZE—tEHMBUEE]) (F7
FOEPIEZR) (EFIEZR]) - 5| AFIF
TEMARS - EHERR=ZZ—/\F=
A=+ N\BEEXAZER  WHRZHET)
F-HE_ZT-\F+-A=+—HL
FE - REBEAETHEMRAS - 588E
B E 82 52,000,000/ JT 2 i Al #5 ¥ Bt
$8.25% =k 1 M i #82,000,000/% T
2R IR T R 16.5% 1 © TFA
SHERAS 2 SEER 5 HGEE
B — TR 16.5% ik Ft

BBRINERDUSE O BIAD A FE
fEET RPN AR BAKE RS HIN
REEENERE RLAME R 2 AT R B

2018 2017
—E-)N\E —T—tF
HK$ HK$
BT I
Current — Hong Kong RNEA—HB

Charge for the year REFEXH 2,886,205 374,950
Over provision in prior years F RS = (2,991)

Current — outside Hong Kong NER— BRI
Charge for the year REFZH 798,446 517,271
Under/(over) provision in prior years TR/ (BR) B 199,283 (35,562)
Tax expense for the year NEEMIBRAZ 3,883,934 853,668
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FTB8HL (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are operated to the tax expense

BRRERNRARBAREXZHHE AR
P S8 SR [R5 RO PR AR RS B 2 VR E B R
At E RO IR R ST BB IR R S 2 S A AN

is as follows: T
2018 2017
—EB-N\F e
HK$ HK$
BT 7B IT
Profit before tax B 250 AT A 5,108,554 9,145,528
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% JREFEME16.5% ZFHi1A
(2017: 16.5%) (ZF—+F :16.5%) 842,911 1,509,012
Tax effect of two-tiered profits tax rates HM{SHEMFH 2z &
regime (165,000) -
Effect of different rates for companies 2 AR H M F1EHE R ) TR
operating in other jurisdictions -7 282,222 190,454
Income not subject to tax - G ON (300,854) (585,834)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR HRA B 2 X 68,098 18,299
Unrecognised temporary differences* — ARiER 2 B MEER* 2,909,033 (1,558,367)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BN LARTARTER < I E 1
tax losses (299,084) (171,186)
Under/(over) provision in prior years FFEmiR (B BE 199,283 (38,553)
Tax losses not recognised RERZ FIBEE 513,629 1,813,616
Others Hit (166,304) (323,773)
Tax expense for the year REEHIAR 3,883,934 853,668

* The unrecognised temporary differences for the year mainly arose from
the provision for Mainland China staff compensation due to the closure
of a factory.

* OARFEZAERZERMEEZR 2R
BEMMZTBRAEE THES ZBE
EE S

BRHERZERAERD A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

11. DIVIDEND

The director of the Company do not recommend the payment
of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are

1. BE

ARARBEETEBREBEEHE—_Z—\F
+_A=+t—BLEFEZRE(ZZ—
LF HE) o

12. XRRHEBAFEERER

SREARBERFREAL FEA
B2 B SR R R A B BT
B EBREA Y -

BRERLEERNRIBEA TS

based on:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AN RIHA ARG A
used in the basic and diluted earnings per REAEFRERN#E
share calculation & F 1,224,620 8,291,860
Shares i gvi)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ AFE AL #1772 iNHEF
in issue during the year used in the basic HERKREE ARE
and diluted earnings per share calculation BREARESRT] 267,004,800 267,004,800

As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares, diluted
earnings per share was the same as basic earnings per share in
2018 and 2017.

R EALBEEENERER  R_F—
NER T FHNERERBN RS
RgE B AAaE o
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BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - MEKRRZE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Plant and office Motor
buildings  improvements machinery  equipment vehicles Moulds Total
Bl %BR
1iRES RERE BEREE BAZRE RE R @it
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
31 December 2018 “E-0\F
tZA=1-A
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—t%
1 January 2018; TZA=+-Bk
2N\
—A-B:
Cost or valuation A E 138,893,000 55,702,363 129,728,905 33,891,017 5,491,874 60,527,234 424,234,393
Accumulated depreciation 2iE - (28,410,406)  (85,665,757)  (30,477,957) (4,554,598)  (60,527,234)  (209,635,952)
Net carrying amount REHE 138,893,000 27,291,957 44,063,148 3,413,060 937,276 - 214,598 441
At 1 January 2018, net R2-\E&A-B
carmying amount RE%E 138,893,000 27,291,957 44,063,148 3,413,060 937,276 - 214,598,441
Additions AE - 978,007 2,093,995 215,111 324,300 - 3,612,073
Disposals e - - (48,705) (2.229) - - (50,934)
Witten-off s - - (2,074) - - - (2,074)
Depreciation & (4,810,297) (1,558,565) (7,525,838) (734,574) (450,162) - (15,079,436)
Provision for impairment RERE - - (1,841,415) (14,531) - - (1,855,946)
Surplus on revaluation credited to  EERERTA
other comprehensive income Efp2ERA 16,645,788 - - - - - 16,645,788
Exchange realignment ExAR (2,734,491) (1,354,795) (2,027,911) (138,338) (39,371) - (6,294,906)
At 31 December 2018, RIZ-NE
net carrying amount tZR=t-B"
REFE 147,994,000 25,356,604 34,711,200 2,739,159 772,043 - 211,573,006
At 31 December 2018: RZZ-N\§
t-A=t+-8:
Cost or valuation A E 147,994,000 47,440,871 120,125,141 24,812,995 4,955,105 56,245,942 401,574,054
Accumulated depreciation ZHITER
and impairment loss HEEE - (22,084,267)  (85413,941)  (22,073,836) (4,183,062)  (56,245,942)  (190,001,048)
Net carrying amount REFE 147,994,000 25,356,604 34,711,200 2,739,159 772,043 - 211,573,006

Analysis of cost or valuation A EEA T
R F

at 31 December 2018: NZE-N

+-A=t-H:
At cost KA - 47,440,871 120,125,141 24,812,995 4,955,105 56,245,942 253,580,054
At valuation fhiE 147,994,000 - - - - - 147,994,000

147,994,000 47,440,871 120,125,141 24,812,995 4,955,105 56,245,942 401,574,054
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HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥  MERREZE)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Plant and office Motor
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Moulds Total
Rl £ER
TitREF BEXE  HREREE  BAERE g EA @t
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS
AT AT BT BT BT BT AT
31 December 2017 “5tF
+=fA=+-H
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-RF
1 January 2017: TZA=+-BR
I 3
-A-R:
Cost o valuation AR {E(E 120,286,000 52,553,820 142,931,997 33938368 5734611 60,527,234 415,972,030
Accumulated depreciation 2iE - (26167949)  (99493569) (30,534,619  (3787,912)  (60,527,234) (220,511,283)
Net carrying amount REFE 120,286,000 26385871 43,438,428 3,403,749 1,946,699 - 195,460,747
At 1 January 2017, REE-t5A-R
net carrying amount REFE 120,286,000 26,385,871 43438428 3,403,749 1,946,699 - 195,460,747
Additions HE = 427,986 4,110,629 526,310 - - 5,064,925
Disposals e - = (313,307) (4,647) (142,887) = (460,841)
Depreciation i} (4,123,870)  (1,385,808) (6,749,892 (731,824) (949,096) - (13,940,490
Reversal of impairment REEE - - 526,680 - - - 526,680
Surplus on revaluation credited to ~ EMEREATA
other comprehensive income Ef2ERA 19,051,608 - - - - - 19,051,608
Exchange realignment B A% 3,679,262 1,863,908 3,050,610 219472 82,560 = 8,895,812
At 31 December 2017, RIE—t5
net carrying amount tZR=t-B"
REFE 138,893,000 27,291,957 44,063,148 3,413,060 937276 - 214598441
At 31 December 2017: RZB—+4F
t-A=t+-8:
Cost o valuation RASEE 138893000 55702363 129728905 33,891,017 5491874 60,527,234 424,234393
Accumulated depreciation ZHER
and impairment loss REEE - (28410406)  (85,665757)  (30477,957)  (4554598)  (60,527,234) (209,635,952
Net carrying amount REFE 138,893,000 27,291,957 44,063,148 3,413,060 937276 - 214598441

Analysis of cost or valuationat ~ KAAEAT
% £

31 December 2017; NS

t-A=t+-8:
At cost KA - 55,702,363 129,728,905 33,891,017 5,491,874 60,527,234 285,341,393
At valuation fhiE 138,893,000 - - - - - 138,893,000

138,893,000 55,702,363 129,728,905 33,891,017 5,491,874 60,527,234 424,234,393
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at the end of the
reporting period by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuer. The land and buildings in Hong
Kong were revalued on the basis of market value by the
comparison approach, based on their existing state, while the
buildings in Mainland China were revalued using the depreciated
replacement cost method. No changes were made in the valuation
technique(s) during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017. A surplus arising from revaluation on the land and buildings
of HK$16,645,788 (2017: HK$19,051,608) has been credited to
other comprehensive income.

Had the Group’s land and buildings been carried at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, their
carrying amounts would have been included in the consolidated
financial statements at approximately HK$64,263,000 (2017:
HK$68,731,000).

On 8 November 2018, the management of a subsidiary in the
precision parts and components segment located in Mainland
China announced that the factory of the subsidiary would be
closed by the end of February 2019 subsequent to the end of
tenancy agreement. The directors have reviewed the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment under the subsidiary
and determined that the recoverable amount of certain of these
assets has declined below their carrying amount. Accordingly,
the carrying amount of these assets has been reduced by
HK$1,855,946 to reflect this impairment loss. The recoverable
amount of these assets amounting to HK$227,127 is determined
by reference to the fair value less costs of disposal by reference
to the subsequent selling price.

13.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

W% - BERRE®E)

NEEZ T REFRFEBRABEL
BELAERGEMEGETENGE-
EBTHEREFERELEFANTHE
BEREFAOMRDERS - mP B AER
BFARFTESERNEAEH - HE
T E-N\FER_E—tF+_A=1
—BIEFERN BE@EMGEFELEE
HEMEE - ALl EmMELENE
1H &8r16,645,788B L ( —_F — L4 :
19,051,608 7t ) E 57 A H b 2 [ Uk
]\o

NEE B i AT AR S Ak AR 2 AT
ENRERBIEYE - HEEEDF AL
AT - E S 5E464,263,000
BT (ZZ—+4F : 68,731,000/87T) °

RZZF—NF+—ANB ' BEZEMHF
PET—HWBRAANEREQNEZNEB
REfI R B AENBEER =E—1
F- ARBEERRTH%ZER - EFE
REEZMBRAI T Z2ME  BE R
HZRMETEES TREEE K
EeRREENERAEME - Bt - %=
BEZREED#RA1,855,946/8 7T
R RERBRE - 25 EE 2 TlE
TSR E227,1278 L2 E RN EER
HEXNAR2EREE CEEBMET -

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. AL EER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BMEREE 11,879,731 11,554,976
Amortisation during the year NEEHEH (297,941) (290,707)
Exchange realignment JE 7 (448,485) 615,462
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=1+—HKNEKEE 11,133,305 11,879,731

Current portion included in prepayments, st ATENFIE » &K

deposits and other receivables H b fE W SR IB A B 261 (288,899) (299,749)
Non-current portion IEREER D 10,844,406 11,579,982
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HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

15. SUBSIDIARIES 15. B A A

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBARFBET
Percentage of

equity interest
attributable

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Company name operations Issued and paid-up share to the Company Principal activities
R/ MR
AR AR EEMY BRTRAZRYG APAfERAEEE AL EEEHR
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F “T—+tF ZB-NFf ZZ+F
Cokeen Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of management
BRERBR AR B 10,0003 7T 10,0007 7T and administrative services
REER KT RS
E-Dotcom Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
BA 28T 28T REER
Hideki Electronics Limited Hong Kong ~ HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 100 100  Sale of consumer electronic
AREFERAR A% 2,000,000  2,000,0007%7T products
HEBTHEM
Hi-Tech (China) Investment Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Limited £& 2,000,000 2,000,000 REER
mE (hE) REBRAF
Hi-Tech Investment Holdings British Virgin Islands US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100 Investment holding
Limited REARRES 50,0003 7t 50,000% 7T REER
Hi-Tech Property Holdings British Virgin Islands/ Uss$1 Us$1 100 100  Property holding
Limited Mainland China 157 (Ev MERE
SREBRES/
e
Hi-Tech Precision Industrial Hong Kong ~ HK$1,500,000  HK$1,500,000 100 100 Sale of precision parts and
Limited &% 1,500,000 1,500,000/ 7T components
REREIEERARA HERTTEM
Hunpex Limited Hong Kong  HK$4,650,000 HK$4,650,000 100 100 Investment holding
RigEBR AR B 4,650,000 4,650,000 REER
K & P Group (Holdings) British Virgin Islands/ ~ US$1,238,545 US$1,238,545 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong  1,238,545%7  1,238545% 7T BAER
EREARER /B
K. S. (China) Electronics Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
Manufactory Limited 0 2B 28T REER
2y (RE) SFRERAR
Mars Field Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 US$1 100 100 Investment holding
B ER N Hong Kong 1% (E BAER
RRERRES/BE
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15. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

15. B AT (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity interest
registration and attributable
Company name operations Issued and paid-up share to the Company Principal activities
KL/ &
AEER EXimE ERTRAZRSG RAFERAEREA N TEEK
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F “T—+tF ZB-N\f —T—+tF
Sun Ngai Plastic Products Hong Kong  HK$10,890,000  HK$10,890,000 100 100  Sale of plastic parts and
Factory Limited A% 10,890,000/ 10,890,000 7T components
HEERARBAERAR HELEBT M
Technology Trends British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100 Sale of precision parts and
International Limited Singapore 50,000% 7T 50,000%7T components
HEBEERES,/ HEFTTHY
HIR
@ (hl) EFERAA Mainland China ~ US$10,000,000  US$10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
REIAEE  10,000,000%  10,000,0003%7T of precision parts and
components
SERHERETH
RITTEREFERAR Mainland China US$3,000,000 US$3,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
REIAEE  3,000,000%7%  3,000,000%7T of precision parts and
components
%ﬁ&iﬁ&*ﬁ o= D
iz (RY) BRAR Mainland China ~ HK$22,125,390  HK$9,677,390 100 100 Manufacture and sale
B A RE (note i) (note i) of plastic parts and
22,125,390t 9,677,390/ 0 components
i) i) SERHELRTHMS
HERET (R) BRARA Mainland China ~ RMB5,250,000  RMB4,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
RBIARE (note i) (note ii) consumer electronic
5,250,000 AR¥ 4,000,000 A K products
(FrzEin) i) SUERHETFHER
Note: fi=E -
(i)  On 22 September 2016, the registered share capital increased from (i) RZE—NFALAZ-+=H  #MELXH

HK$8,000,000 to HK$23,000,000. The remaining registered share
capital of HK$874,610 is committed by the Group to inject on or
before 21 September 2026.

(i)  On 7 December 2017, the registered share capital increased from
RMB4,000,000 to RMB6,100,000. The remaining registered share capital
of RMB850,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 6
December 2019. However, it is under the deregistration process and
the management expects that no further share capital will be injected.

Except for K & P Group (Holdings) Limited, all of the above
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

8,000,000 JT 3 A 23,000,000/ 7T ° A&
El&k SRZEARFAA=ZT—HBZRZ
EA M ERGEE 48874,6107 T

i) R-ZTE—tF+-AtH FMEXH
4,000,000 A R #5382 11 556,100,000 A TR ¥E ©
REBAFNR T — n$+*ﬂ/\aiz

A+ JEA R ERTEM & Z8850,000 A R o
i HEEFHEEFPmE EEJEE‘E,HJ%H#T
SREAGFMER -

BrK & P Group (Holdings) Limited 4]
Fat PR AT E A R B AR B HER
ﬁ o

BERR > ERAVIEZARRBMNEL
71%?&’2“$¢V%ZET$§W$E@§
E/?{EI;% i%lwu/—?{% %E'f/\/\
f’ﬂMﬂ%’RTE’JEﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂ g35IBHARE
Rk °
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HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

16. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVPL/AVAILABLE-FOR-

16. RFVPLZ &M EE THEE

SALE FINANCIAL INVESTMENT TRIRE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Available-for-sale financial investment A[ftHELRIRE
Club membership, at fair value SHEE  RAYER = 680,000
Financial asset at FVPL BFVPLZ SREE
Club membership EATEEE 680,000 =
680,000 680,000
Available-for-sale financial investment at cost BERAZHHESRIRE

R=ZF—+tF+=-A=+—H " ¥Etm
KERLSERSELCEMEE - RNE
EHREHRAEELAFEE - WEATE
BN EEDZELRZEEER -
R-ZE—N\FE—F—H FLmREE
o FBEFVPLIL A 4R & B 15 i 3% I =F
224 -

At 31 December 2017, the unlisted investment represented
club membership issued by a private entity. It is measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The fair value
of the club membership is determined with reference to the
publicly available price information. This unlisted investment was
reclassified to FVPL as at 1 January 2018 as disclosed in note 2.2
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

INVENTORIES 17. &
2018 2017
—E-N\E ZE—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials R 24,504,697 31,253,189
Work in progress E&m 14,401,355 17,207,108
Finished goods UK om 31,079,573 31,452,549
69,985,625 79,912,846
Less: provision for slow-moving inventories & @ 45 fH1F S (5,865,067) (6,462,865)
64,120,558 73,449,981

The amount of inventories, included in above, carried at fair value

less costs to sell is HK$2,064,126 (2017: Nil).

Provision of HK$1,632,983 was made to

write down the

inventories to net realisable value during the year. Provisions
made in previous years against the carrying value of inventories of
HK$2,230,781 have been written off against the inventories due

to closure of a factory in consumer electronic

products segment

(2017: HK$1,265,303 have been reversed due to subsequent

sales of the inventories).

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

18.

NEFESBBREEAHEEREEX
A%2,064,1268 T (—F—+LF: &) °

AEER  FEMBE SRR EAE
1%71,632,983/%8 T - AR E T HE
WA BNRE  EFEREZFEREE
2,230,781 B TERFEF#MEE (= —
+ 4 11,265,303 B TRBEREEHE
m#EE) o

ANRE REREMEWR

/el

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Prepayments TERTRIR 2,485,607 2,833,265
Toolings and mould deposits 8BRS 262,602 2,668,527
Deposits and other receivables i N H th fE W IE 4,469,646 6,682,705
7,217,855 12,184,497

SEERERERAT
—E-N\EEH
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HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. EWARIER &

2018 2017
—E-NF —F—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables FEYARIE 88,044,497 74,359,951
Less: loss allowance B SRR (822,410) (822,410)
87,222,087 73,537,541

Bills receivable discounted with recourse A] 3R O] /9 fE U AL 3R B2 4%
(Note 23) (FfFzE23) 145,175 377,602
87,367,262 73,915,143

During the year, the Group discounted bills receivable to a bank
in exchange for cash with recourse in the ordinary course of
business. The Group continues to recognise the full carrying
amount of bills receivable and has recognised the cash received
as secured bank borrowings and included in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements. At the end of the reporting
period, the carrying amount of discounted bills receivable is
HK$145,175 (2017: HK$377,602). The carrying amount of the
associated liability is HK$145,175 (2017: HK$377,602).

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss
allowance for trade and other receivables is included in note
35(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

REFR @ NEBRH S EFBIEF R
FARE A EREE T —RITURIRIR
® o ASBEEBEREKEE 2 2K
HEMERRRSHEAEEMRT
BEERBSEGRE T HRERMFE23 -
RIBERR - KRR ZEEES
1451758 (ZF —+4F : 377,6027%
Jo) o ZiEE B E CREE /145,175
BIL(ZE—+%F : 377,602/87T) °

75 28 7 5% 8 R R LA AR TR e B A B W R IR
FEAMEERREERREZENE
A MR EE3S(C) °

P ¥ B R FE U AR TR 1% 3 22 H B SRR
ERBBRZREDITMT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—+F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within 90 days N+RA 79,545,191 69,376,022
91 to 180 days Nt+—=2—8aNA+X 6,813,196 3,866,173
Over 180 days =VAGw.N 863,700 295,346
87,222,087 73,537,541

120

K & P International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018




e EHRRME e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21.

BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

20. BERREEEER

2018 2017

—E-N\E —+tF

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

Cash and bank balances e MIRIT4 43,762,395 42,285,169

At the end of the reporting period, included in the balance of the
Group are bank balance and cash deposited in Mainland China and
denominated in RMB of HK$27,265,108 (2017: HK$12,392,480).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

21.

RIMEHR - REBAEFBHKREZ
HRBEFBEAARBHEZRITEHRRIR
© /27,265,108 m( =& — & & :
12,392,480/ L) - ARMETREA AL
HE MG MR IR A B K FE SN E
ERERGET HERINNERERR
T AEBEEBRERESEGINE
%2 RITHIEAREE H IR RN -

RITRESFNEFEMOHL EENL
SREVIRTT
FEfY BR1R

R EHRENREZEZE 2 Rk
TR

2018 2017

—E-)N\FE —ET—tF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within 90 days N+RA 42,446,950 53,814,209
91 to 180 days A+—Z—BN+XK 2,473,819 860,779
Over 180 days —BNTRNUE 3,183 4,138
44,923,952 54,679,126

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms varying from 60 to 120 days of invoice
date.

FEfTERTA A B - %E&—ﬁﬁ’:\%%‘%
BBZAAtTE—A - TXER

SEERERERAT
—E-N\EEH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

22. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. EstEERHEMENSRE

2018 2017

—E-)N\E —T—tF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Contract liabilities (note 22(a)) e A E(ME22()) 9,388,683 12,045,272
Other accrued liabilities HihEstams 155,937 67,055
Other payables E@JT’ETN%KI? 3,560,565 7,818,493
Mainland China staff compensation REIRPES THIES 12,286,443 =
Staff cost payables JENETHY 21,312,593 31,076,732
46,704,221 51,007,552

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
credit period of three months.

(a) Contract liabilities

The amount includes toolings and mould deposits received
and sales deposits received.

The movements of toolings and mould deposits received
and sales deposits received from contracts with customers
within HKFRS 15 during the year are as follows:

HiENFRAASREREERRFH=

@A -

(a) EXNEE

ZEBEEREREAZERER

HERS -

REFANBEMERELERE
152 REBTFANMBKRER
Be RO WIHERS ZBEINT

2018

—®-NF

HK$

BT

At 1 January Kn—H—H 12,045,272

Recognised as revenue TERAWA (41,388,345)

Recognised as other income ERAE WA (589,268)
Receipt of advances or recognition W BI85 TR IA Sk B R FE U IR

of receivables 39,321,024

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 9,388,683

At 31 December 2018, all contract liabilities are expected
to be settled within the next 12 months.

R_ZB-—NFE+A=+—8H"
FIEENABREN 2R+ (@

RAA#EB °
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23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

e EHRRME e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T—\FT-A=t+—BLFE

Year en

ded 31 December 2018

23. FERTREMEE

BORROWINGS
2018 —E—\F
Effective interest
rate (%)
per annum  Maturity HK$
BERERE%) FIHH B IT
Current
k)
Finance lease payables (note 24) 1.60-3.25  Fully repayable from 10/7/2019 to 29/4/2022 2,066,627
R EEE (Fier24) H-ZE-AFtAtHE
“ECCHENAZTABRZEBEE
Bank loans - discounted bills with 5.00 Due for payment on 27/1/2019 145,175
recourse (note 19) RZB-AF-A=T+tBIBAN
RITER - ARENBER R
(PFtaE19)
Revolving term loans — unsecured 4.10-5.43  Fully repayable from 11/1/2019 to 23/5/2019 22,000,000
RRAMER —EEF H-Z-hF-A+-BE
ZE-NERERA-TZREZEHEE
Trust receipt loans 3.87-5.10  Fully repayable from 29/1/2019 to 23/4/2019 9,893,426
ERKEBEER H=ZE-AF—HA=tThBZE
“E-NAEFNAZTZ=H2EEE
34,105,228
Non-current
FRB
Finance lease payables (note 24) 1.60 - 3.25  Fully repayable from 26/10/2020 to 29/4/2022 1,704,471

ENRERE (ME24)

H-ZE-ZEF+A-+HE
“EC_EWMACZt+hHEZEEE

35,809,699

2HE

BIZIREIRA ]
“E-\FERH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. FERTREMEE (&)

BORROWINGS (continued)

2017 —E—+4F
Effective interest
rate (%)
per annum  Maturity HK$
BERFENE%) FHE AT
Current
nE
Finance lease payables (note 24) 1.45-3.25  Fully repayable from 29/3/2018 to 29/11/2021 5,748,899
R EEE (Fifst24) AT /\F=ZA=+hHBHZE
ZE—F+—RAZtNB2EEE
Bank loans - discounted bills with 3.85-4.11  Due for payment from 15/1/2018 to 19/2/2019 377,602
recourse (note 19) H-E—\&—F+HHZ
RITER - ARENBER R “E-NFZATAREIHAK
(FfzE19)
Revolving term loans - unsecured 2.77-3.96  Fully repayable from 18/1/2018 to 20/6/2018 23,000,000
RRAREN - EER R-Z-\F—-A+/\BZE
- N\FARA-THZHEE
Instalment loans - unsecured 3.36-3.99  Fully repayable on 29/1/2018 216,636
DEE R — EEA RZE-N\GE—A=+NB28EE
Trust receipt loans 2.65-3.37  Fully repayable from 5/1/2018 to 3/4/2018 6,259,672
EREREER M-_Z—/\F—AABEZE
—E-\FHA=ZAZHEE
35,602,809
Non-current
ELnEY)
Finance lease payables (note 24) 1.45-3.25  Fully repayable from 29/3/2018 to 19/11/2021 3,522,050
R EEE (Firr24) AT \F=ZA=t+HhHZE
T -ATHhBREER
39,124,859
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23.

24.

e EHRRME e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

23.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate

their fair values.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank facilities were secured
by a corporate guarantee executed by the Company and/or

subsidiaries of the Group.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum
lease payments under finance leases and their present values

are as follows:

24,

BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

BERITRAEMER #)

o

AEBERFEZ REEEL QA FEER

+
T

RZZB-NE+ZA=+—0H  ~&E
ERBITHAEEZBIRREARR,
FAREEZ B ARRL 2 BEER -

EAmERS
RBER - REBEHEE TOEFR
HR&EDHEEFRALERSELT

Total minimum finance lease
payments payable within one year

Total minimum finance lease
payments payable in the second
to fifth years

Future finance charges

Total net finance lease payables

Total net finance lease payables
which are classified as
current liabilities

Total net finance lease payables
which are classified as
non-current liabilities

BN —FARN&RD
BEMEFR

BANE_EFHEFRN
EN&LREEE

IE

RRBEER

ENBEREQFH

WAOBRRBAEL
ENREREEEE

WOBRIERBARZ
ENREREE%E

Minimum lease Present value of minimum
payments lease payments

BROHEENE BLOHERENRSE

2018 2017 2018 2017

BN\ —T—tF ZEBE-NF T LF

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT PBIT BT BT

2,196,788 6,031,520 2,066,627 5,748,899

1,778,098 3,697,280 1,704,471 3,522,050
3,974,886 9,728,800 3,771,098 9,270,949
(203,788) (457,851)
3,771,098 9,270,949
(2,066,627) (5,748,899)
1,704,471 3,522,050

SEERERERAT
—E-N\EEH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

24. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued) 24. ENmERE %)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered
into a sale and leaseback arrangement with a finance company
for a motor vehicle. The amount of cash received from the finance
lease was HK$299,510. Principal of finance lease is repayable by
48 monthly instalments together with finance charges at 1.60%
per annum, with purchase option at the end of the lease at a
minimal value of purchase price.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into a sale and leaseback arrangement with a finance company
for certain lots of machineries. The aggregate amount of cash
received from the finance lease was HK$3,480,580. Principal of
finance lease is repayable by 48 monthly instalments together
with finance charges at 3.25% per annum, with purchase option
at the end of the lease at a minimal value of purchase price.

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment held under finance leases, and was
therefore pledged, was HK$7,941,992 (2017: HK$25,538,636).

25. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

2018

25.

BHE-_E-\E+-_A=1+—HILFE
A AREE-SREBERTT —HER
NEZ HER—E05E - ZRtEHE Y
& FAT5%E/4299,5108 T - BEMAE
ZAGERBMEERRFTHE.60EL
4@ B o HifEE  WHAREEL
RESERREE ZRERE -

HE_T+tF+-_A=+—HBLFE
A AEEE-SRBERT —HER
NEZ HHERE THES - ZREREZ
IR & P15 4258 /33,480,580/8 7T © A&
MEZ A ERBEERLFHN*E3.25
[0 LA481E A 5 BR1E R - Y PTAS0 AR
ERREHERRBERBEE -

R-ZE—NE+-A=+—8 ' K&£H
EREHETHEZYE  BERXK
FEETF ZREEAT7,941,9928 (=
T —+4F : 25,538,636/ 7T) °
EERBIE
REBERNZELERIEGEREEZBIN
T

EERIEEE

—E-N\E

Depreciation
allowance in

excess of
related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
HEHEBRTEZ
MERHHE L EERE st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—HA—H 872,032 16,890,079 17,762,111
Deferred tax debited to equity RNEERERTRZ
during the year R IE - 4,256,567 4,256,567
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZZE—NF+=A
31 December 2018 = +—RHZEERE
BERE 872,032 21,146,646 22,018,678
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

25, IEERIE (&)
EERIBEE(E)
2017 —E—+F

Depreciation
allowance in

excess of
related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
AR E 2
TERNE M E HEt
HK$ HK$ HK$
ABTT BIT BT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 872,032 13,510,579 14,382,611
Deferred tax debited to equity REERERTRZ
during the year R IE - 3,379,500 3,379,500
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZZE—+tF+=A
31 December 2017 = +t—HZEERE
afEHER 872,032 16,890,079 17,762,111
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the HRAERELERBEEZEBNAT

following items:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—tF

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

Deductible temporary differences ] F 418 = E b5 1 = £ 46,901,503 71,441,976
Tax losses HIEEE 32,353,348 36,350,491
At end of the reporting period KRR HIR 79,254,851 107,792,467

Pursuant to Mainland China Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is
therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends to be distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008 onwards.

BRI ARESEERE  REBRA
BER M NI E D ERINRIREH
FIRKEBIZI0%BIRTET o b8
TH_EEN\F—A—BEW W@
AR -_ZEE+E+_A=1+—HENEA
FI o i AR B K B BRANBR 48 & ) BAAE
BRI EH BB - AR EAEREANTEN
RE - Bt AEEFEERRPEAKR
BRI EME AR T )\ F—
A—RREENBFFTD RIS
TEHFL ©

BRHERZERAERD A

—E-NEEH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25. IRIERIE (&)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

At 31 December 2018, no deferred tax has been recognised for
such withholding taxes that would be payable on the retained
earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China that are subject to withholding taxes at distribution. In the
opinion of the directors, these accumulated profits, at the present
time, are required for financing the continuing operations of the
entities and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of retained earnings associated
with these subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$19,693,000 at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$19,732,000).

At 31 December 2018, the Group has unrecognised tax losses
that can be offset against future taxable profits of the respective
subsidiaries. No deferred tax assets have been recognised because
it is not expected that future taxable profits will be available
against which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom. The
expiry dates for unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

ELERBREE(E)

R-ZZBE—N\FE+-_F=1+—H8  &&£E
I 48 LA R B KRR S 2 [T BB A Bl R
DIRIREE B FIFEE A 2 JES TR B RR
BIEFRIE - EERANBEAALZER
FERAET YR AR BELS  YEA
FERRRENMEDIRK - R=ZZ—N\F+
ZA=1+—8  WEmERHEETBEARE
B ARIREAFRE I REREARE
4R5T#919,693,0008 L ( —F — £ 4F ¢
19,732,000/ 7T) ©

RZZBE-NFE+ZA=+—8H  ~&E
BRI B R Z S B A R ERTUS
MEVRERHIAREE - ARAREREE
BT Al B R AR IR R TBR A -
I R FERIRIETR IR B B © R HE
RRBEBERNERBLWT

2018 2017

—E-—N\F T —tF

HK$ HK$

BT P IT

Tax losses without expiration 5 m 2 FIBE 18 32,353,348 30,986,525
Tax losses expiring in: VAT @ 2 B IE B 18

2019 —E—NF - 428,931

2020 B FT4F - 2,425,630

2021 T —F - 226,872

2022 T F - 2,282,533

At the end of the reporting period RIEHAR 32,353,348 36,350,491

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

ARBRNABLE T E R AR E TS
BREE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B
2018 2017
—E-N\EF ZE—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Shares [iavil
Authorised: JETE
900,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each 900,000,0000% &I HE &
0.10/87T 90,000,000 90,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
267,004,800 shares of HK$0.10 each 267,004,800k FHx A&
0.10/%5 7T 26,700,480 26,700,480

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

27. BIRRESTHE

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
with effect from 23 May 2012. A summary of the Scheme is as

follows:

Purposes

To provide incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their
contributions to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds an
equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

RAREHRMAN-—ZE——FRA-+=
BASZ BERRARERTEI([5HE]) - 5HEIHE
TN ¢

B & RBERBERERSEA
THASEELRZER RS
sk i BY AN SR B 5F K 8 B
BEELTMHAEEET
(] 75 £5 8 55 8 EL AL A B AS 1
mzRE([FIREREDEA
BERBEZANER -

BRHERZERAERD A

—E-NEEH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Participants

Total number of ordinary
shares available for issue
and the percentage of
the issued share capital
that it represents as at
the date of the annual
report

Maximum entitlement
of each participant

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

any employee (whether full-
time or part-time), executive
directors, non-executive
directors and independent
non-executive directors of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or
services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;
any customer of the Group
or any Invested Entity; any
person or entity that provides
research, development or other
technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity;
and

any shareholder of any member
of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested
Entity.

26,700,480 ordinary shares and
10% of the issued share capital.

Shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

27. BIRRETE(2)

ZEAL ()

(ii)

(ii)

AT ETIE
3B R AR BUA
RERAREF
HEHED
BITRAR
Bk

BER2EAL
Al E R S
EBR

ARR - BEMRKBLQ
BIREERMARE AR
ZEAREE (THREEB
SEARE)  MITES 3k
WITESE RBIIEATT
£ N

Al A = B E ] A B 2 7]
HAEMPTIRE R AR M
B RS A A
B AEESRERMER
BRAIZEMEF : @
REBIEMMAIRE R
AEHEHTE - FERE
MR Z EAAL
E/NI S

AEBEEAKE QAL
EAATIRE R R ZEA
BRI AKEEMAIKE
REREMATIE QA
P B 1T (R & 75 2 (E )
FAA °

26,700,4808% 8% &
HEETIRAZ10% °

EEMEARN T
SHRAXARAS#HT
H&$Z1°/o °
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Period within which the
securities must be
taken up under an
option

Minimum period for
which an option must
be held before it can
be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance

Period within which
payments/calls/loans
must be made/repaid

Basis of determining the
exercise price

The remaining life of the
Scheme

An option may be exercised at
any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the
directors to each grantee, but shall
end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of the grant of
options subject to the provisions for
early termination thereof.

There is no minimum period for
which an option granted must be
held before it can be exercised.

The offer of a grant of share options
may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer with a
consideration of HK$1.00 being
payable by the grantee.

Not applicable.

Determined by the directors but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the ordinary shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date
of the offer of options, which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of the ordinary shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of options;
and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

The Scheme remains in force until
22 May 2022.

e EHRRME e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BHE_Z-/\F+_A=+—HLEFE

RIBEBAER
B
R

BRETEZ
A ZAREH
B AR AR IR

FEfZ M TR

NE B3P
R [EE
HERH
R

FEEnEE
o

A&l EREY
FH

Year ended 31 December 2018

27. BIRETE(2)

BEAERAAREEFR
E K e HE A EA
By PR 1T (2 BB A - HE
EEMBERTTEE
Re R ERER S
REEH10F (RIR % R
e LERIBRSL) -

TR B A HE 2 A
I & 0 B H A B &R A
HIMR -

AR AR R B
EZZBRE-TN
BA- ERNEER
8 & %81.00%8 7T 18 £
MR EE -

THEA -

HEFRET ELR
ERTIFRZRDE
(i) & B A 12 1 B X
BEZEH(ARXR
2 B ) 2 Wi 8 (LA B

RFFEMERMAEE R
) ()& BRI M

BREEZEAANAME
RBBZFHKME
(CABS ST pr B $RK P
BHAEE) - Ri)AAF]
&P EE -

EEREE T ——
FRA-+-HIt-

BRHERZERAERD A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27. BR#ETE ()
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends BkERsE AL TZHEER SN
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. MR EIRE o o
There were no share options granted, exercised, cancelled or EERAR AT DASKE - WERE ~ 1718 -
forfeited since the adoption of the Scheme and there was no T EHEERE BB E RN T — \F R
outstanding share option as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. —T—tF+-—A=+—H  BEXT

1502 RERSCRE -

28. RESERVES 28. f#if
(a) Group (a) &£H

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 55 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The share premium account represents the excess of the net
proceeds or consideration from issuance of the Company’s
shares over their par value.

The application of the share premium account is governed
by Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of
the Group’s reorganisation and represents the excess of the
nominal value of the share capital of the former holding
company of the Group, K & P Group (Holdings) Limited, prior
to the Group’s reorganisation in preparation for the listing
of the Company’s shares in 1996, over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor, less the amount capitalised to pay up the nil-paid
shares issued on the incorporation of the Company.

The asset revaluation reserve of the Group is used to record
the increases in the fair value of land and buildings and the
decreases to the extent that such decrease relates to an
increase on the same asset previously recognised in equity.

The exchange fluctuation reserve of the Group is used to
record exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

A RIABIE R 2 A R B
REBE 25 R AH B8 % E55
B2 GAREEDE -

B s EREZRTARARNE
KZARFRBFEIREEBE
EEZ &R °

B RERZERSAERE—N
N—FREEFLOFEE -

AEBZHARBREAAEEE
B TEAEER—NANANES
EBEARRAIRG L2 EHRTA
EBZAER AR K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited 2 R%ZE{EE
ARABABRBRZER G METR
AEEMZHZEBREAIA
B R AR B 2 5 AR 2 B By 3
IRBGED 2 258 -

AEBBEEERRMEEBIETD
B REFRAFEBZEM
HERDHNEERREREER
@R AT EEE MR E

N2
S o

T

AL B 2 [ 5K B R B = AT
B EIBIMNEE R BB RER M
EEMELER -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

28. RESERVES (continued)

BE-Z-\Ft-A=t—RALLFE

Year ended 31 December 2018

28. f#E (&)

(b) Company (b) AF]
Share
premium Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
R EER 0N ZitER @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2017 R=_Z—+F—H—H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (22,440,962) 78,415,900
Loss for the year and total FEEERRASE
comprehensive loss for the year FEERESH - - (75,116) (75,116)
At 31 December 2017 “E—+E+-A=+—H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (22,516,078) 78,340,784
Loss for the year and total TEEBBRAEE
comprehensive loss for the year FHERESR - - (10,292,589) (10,292,589)
At 31 December 2018 R=E-NE+=A=1+—-H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (32,808,667) 68,048,195

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the underlying consolidated net assets
of K & P Group (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries at
the date on which the Group’s reorganisation became
effective, referred to in note 28(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore, less
the amount capitalised to pay up the nil-paid shares issued
on the incorporation of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company
may make distributions to its members out of the contributed
surplus in certain circumstances. As at 31 December 2018,
the Company'’s reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
amounted to HK$17,191,314 (2017: HK$27,483,903).

RRABIZHARERIE K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited X E KB AR
EEEAERB Zf‘ﬁ/\éﬁﬁfﬁ
BHEARAEITUARBRZA
BAEmEz 5 (GFEE %@iﬁzﬁ’\?v?{:\
MR EMTE28(a)) - BEBRE
KALAR AR R 2 s B A3 B Fr
BITARBEZ D258 -

REBRE-NN\—FREE"
$“ﬂ7&%¢t'liiﬁﬂié%z)\ﬁ
AP BEREEXBIEHDIK °
—Z-NE+=—A=+—8" ZK
AEIRBEERE-NN—FAF
ETHEFE - AIHARARED K
2 R17,191,3148 T (=& —
+ 4 1 27,483,903/ 7T ) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

29. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 29. MEERBELECEEET

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities are as follows:

AEEREEDEL BEEH T HE
W -

2018 —2-N\F
Interest-
bearing Bank loans-
bank and discounted Finance
other  Dbills with lease
borrowing recourse payables Total
RITER —
HERTR EIE == ENmE
Hitfg & AR R HE et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At beginning of the year FARE A 29,476,308 377,602 9,270,949 39,124,859
New unsecured bank loans/ EERIRITER
revolving term loans/trust BIREHER 15
receipt loans SRR E K 95,319,646 - - 95,319,646
Decrease in discounted bills BRIRER 2R - (232,427) - (232,427)
Repayment of unsecured BEEER S BER
instalment loans/bank loans/  $R1TER &R
revolving term loans/trust BEER a5t
receipt loans BER (92,902,528) - - (92,902,528)
New finance leases raised MEEERE - - 299,510 299,510
Capital element of finance BEHENHZER
lease payments =) - - (5,799,361) (5,799,361)
At end of the year RAFER 31,893,426 145,175 3,771,098 35,809,699
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

SREPBBRRME @

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

29. MEEBELE CEBEEEB(2)

2017 —=
Interest-
bearing Bank loans-
bank and  discounted Finance
other bills with lease
borrowing recourse payables Total
RITER—
HERITR AR B FERT R E
HfEE R e HE #st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At beginning of the year i) 26,813,378 345,603 15,134,743 42,293,724
New unsecured bank loans/ HEEIERRTER
revolving term loans/trust BERAEHER =
receipt loans B E R 62,117,840 - - 62,117,840
Increase in discounted bills B3R =R 2 8 0 = 31,999 - 31,999
Repayment of unsecured BEEERS BHEX
instalment loans/bank loans/  $R1TER @R
revolving term loans/trust BHIER 55t
receipt loans BB (59,454,910) = - (59,454,910)
New finance leases raised IEREHEE - - 3,480,580 3,480,580
Capital element of finance RERENRCER
lease payments &1 - —  (9,344,374) (9,344,374)
At end of the year RAFERER 29,476,308 377,602 9,270,949 39,124,859

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, bank loan-discounted
bills with recourse and finance leases payables are disclosed in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

AEBRTAEMEES  BITER AR
EMAREE R ENBERENGE
SRR 5235 ©

BRERERAERA T
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE—

—N\F+ZA=t—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2018

30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 30. KEHEERH
The Group leases certain of its office properties and factories AEBRBRKEHELHERE THA
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties and EMENKE ZSHAMENEEZ

factories are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

HEFMN F—E=ETE -

RI|ERR - AEBRBTEDUHLE
HEZ BR&EPENHERRESN T

falling due as follows: EAFEIEI R -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year R—FR 918,934 1,038,598
In the second to fifth years, inclusive REZZERF
(BREEREMF) - 144,575
918,934 1,183,173
31. COMMITMENTS 31. &E
Except for those disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated BRIZEE AR S I TS Rk A E (3t 5 b
financial statements, at the end of the reporting period, the Eé‘i&%ﬁﬂ 7R ER B 3 A A A B AR
Group did not have any other capital commitments. o
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BEAELRS
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: REEEEEBEAS 2R -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short term employee benefits EHEE R 10,110,281 8,809,023
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes E/R4EFIsHEI 36,000 36,000
Total compensation paid to S TEEZEEEAE 2 BRI
key management personnel 10,146,281 8,845,023
The above compensation for key management personnel of NERGEEFREEAB 2B EES

the Group includes emoluments paid to the directors. Further
details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NTEFME - FRESTMHE 2 A
BERBRNGA M SRR MEES
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

33. &M T EMNSE
RIpEER - £t TARERREREmEE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
2018 —E-N\&
Financial assets Financial
at amortised cost asset at FVPL Total
REBHERAE 2 RFVPLZ
SREE SREE @zt
HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets as per consolidated ~REBAEAMERARZ
statement of financial position: SREE
Financial asset at FVPL RFVPLZ ERVEE - 680,000 680,000
Financial assets included in prepayments, B&REMFHIE KERk
deposits and other receivables H A e IR 2 & B
(note 18) BE(ME18) 1,690,339 - 1,690,339
Trade and bills receivables LGN ES 87,367,262 - 87,367,262
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkHeFMEER 43,762,395 - 43,762,395
132,819,996 680,000 133,499,996
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
RS2
SREE wmEt
HK$ HKS$
& JT T
Financial liabilities as per consolidated BEHEHHMRAERZ
statement of financial position: SRAEE:
Trade payables FETBRIR 44,923,952 44,923,952
Financial liabilities included in accrued BERESTBEREMERNKIE
liabilities and other payables (note 22) ZemBE (H:E22) 3,084,823 3,084,823
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #&83R1T R EMEE 35,809,699 35,809,699
83,818,474 83,818,474

BRHERZERAERD A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. &MITEMNSE &)
(continuedq)
2017 —E i
Available-for-
Loans and sale financial
receivables assets Total
SRk AHEHE
FENRIE SREE KR
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets as per consolidated BEGETBRARZ
statement of financial position: TREE
Available-for-sale financial investment R ESRIRE = 680,000 680,000
Financial assets included in prepayments, E2&RBNRE KE R
deposits and other receivables HAfEW IR 2 S B
(note 18) BE(fiz18) 748,356 - 748,356
Trade and bills receivables e BRIE I 215 73,915,143 = 73,915,143
Cash and cash equivalents BekHeEEER 42,285,169 - 42,285,169
116,948,668 680,000 117,628,668
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
TR SE R AN 51 BR
L §= N 5T
HK$ HK$
P IT Vor
Financial liabilities as per consolidated RIBERE SRR T 2
statement of financial position: TRIBE -
Trade payables FETBRIE 54,679,126 54,679,126
Financial liabilities included in accrued BERETTBEREMER
liabilities and other payables (note 22) HEzEBEE (FzF22) 7,567,097 7,567,097
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings %8 3R1T & E M fEE 39,124,859 39,124,859
101,371,082 101,371,082
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured at
fair value or required to disclose in these consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis across the three levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement,
with the fair value measurement categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement. The levels of inputs are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level):

Level 2:

Level 3 (lowest level):

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the
measurement date;

inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly;

unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

34. AFHEEE

ATEEEHBERELEEIZR : 2
FIEEFEMREZAFEE=[EFMR
Il A FEEAECEERAES
BIEE R ENGREMHRREE -
RNHEEZDBERERESRME A
FEENERITEAEATENBAR
B MABBSAERDD

FHR(EEFR): AEEEFERA
IR BT IS ES
REENAEZR
BOREHAE):

BEXRBETEE
KEEEEZBA
B E-MBR
ZREERIN

FoR(EEFR): BEXARZTA
B ABIE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 34. AV EEE#E)
The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities TRETEATLEEIAENEEKSE

measured at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy: & WIRAFEBESRDE L

2018 —E—N\E
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-l B FE=K gt
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
Financial asset at FVPL: RFVPLZ S REE :
— Club membership o e
— outside Hong Kong —BBHI 680,000 - - 680,000
Land and buildings: THREF !
Commercial - Hong Kong BE—BB - 76,300,000 - 76,300,000
Industrial - outside Hong Kong T2 —&# 54 - - 71,694,000 71,694,000
2017 —E—+F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 FE-® B=H et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT FBIT BT BT
Available-for-sale financial ARHESHITE
investment:
— Club membership —Efes
— outside Hong Kong —BBHI 680,000 - - 680,000
Land and buildings: THIRIETF
Commercial - Hong Kong EE A8 - 67,700,000 - 67,700,000
Industrial - outside Hong Kong IX—-BAFEN - - 71,193,000 71,193,000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 34,

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements
and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

AFEEFESR)
BE_Z—)\FrR_ZT—+F+-A=
+—BULEFERN AFEBEFE2FE K
NE KBV EIAER BEFE=
BAFEEFEZEAREL o

F=RAVEESEZEH

2018 —2-N\E
Land and
building:
Industrial
- outside
Hong Kong

T REF
T¥-FEEN
HK$
Description it BT
At beginning of the reporting period RS BT 71,193,000
Depreciation debited to profit or loss B IR 2T E (2,220,297)
Fair value gain on revaluation credited to BHEAFEERGEFA

other comprehensive income Hip2mUKA 5,455,788
Exchange realignment M 5, B (2,734,491)
At the end of the reporting period REEHR 71,694,000

Changes in unrealised gains or losses for the period ~ ANERfEBIETEIE
included in profit or loss held at the end of the FRAEZRER
reporting period

Wk g iR 2 &

BRERERAERA T
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 34. RV EEFE®)
Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements E=H LT EETEZEH£Z)
(continued)
2017 B4 F
Land and
building:
Industrial
— outside
Hong Kong
T RAETF
TE—-FHFEN
HK$
Description Fa BT
At beginning of the reporting period ¥ BRAT) 64,996,000
Depreciation debited to profit or loss BRENGRITE (2,063,607)
Fair value gain on revaluation credited to BEATFEBERETA
other comprehensive income HAb 2 EURA 4,581,346
Exchange realignment bE 7 582 3,679,261
At the end of the reporting period R EHAR 71,193,000
Changes in unrealised gains or losses for the period  ZANEfEBIEEIBZRER M MRS BIR
included in profit or loss held at the end of the BH 2 ARERIW S EE 2 B8
reporting period -
Description of the valuation techniques and inputs FoRNAFEEFEZBABER
used in Level 2 fair value measurement fREFR E
Properties located in Hong Kong REBZ Y=
The properties located in Hong Kong were revalued by Chung, NREBBZMEABLEXAERMGE
Chan & Associates, independent professionally qualified valuer, A ETRALEMSEEN S AEH
on the basis of market value by the comparison approach, which HE - BB mSHERMERS R
is based on market observable transactions of similar properties REREZWFMR 2 E BREETTEINAN
and adjusted for differences in key valuation attributes, such as Kigt  MUEEHERFE -

size and age to reflect the conditions of the subject properties.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 3 fair value measurement

Properties located in Mainland China

The fair value of the properties located in Mainland China was
revalued by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent professionally
qualified valuer, using depreciated replacement cost approach. The
valuer considered the subject properties are specialised properties
for which there is no readily market observable transaction of
similar properties. The estimation of fair value of the subject
properties took into account their current cost of replacement
or reproduction, less deduction for physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation.

Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of valuation
techniques used in Level 3 fair value measurement

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
input and description of valuation techniques used in Level 3 fair
value measurement, including the description of the sensitivity to
changes in unobservable inputs for recurring Level 3 fair value
measurements, are as follows:

Fair value at 31

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

34. P EEFE#E)

F=RAFEEFEZBABER
fEET R
(i A [ 2 5%

URAPBEREZMERBIEXSER
HEMEETRABNEEEXNNEEN
e - HEERBIZME BT -
M LY EABRZBRANERS - &
BRIZOMEZAHEBRZERKNE
ERERKA - MRBEERCE2EE
AN REE REL -

F=ERNFEEFEMAZEKR
THBEGARBEZELLER KM
B AR
F=MAFEEAEMAZIEATAE
REABBZELLERRMGELEH
it BEHEEUEE=RATFEEHE
ZA A BRE ABIREE) 2 GURE HL
LI

Sensitivity of
fair value to changes in

Description December 2018 Valuation techniques Unobservable input unobservable inputs
R=E-NEt=R TUBREBAREL

g ST-AzAVEE  fHERE TUERZRAHE ATEESRESS

Asset

Property, plant and HK$71,694,000 Depreciated replacement  Estimated costs of construction ~ Assuming other factors remain

equipment cost approach
- Properties included in
land and building:

Industrial outside
Hong Kong
BE
ERE Y E L 71,694,000 7 REEERAL
-NERFEETHRET
BEREINIENE

REERE L (HETRERA
(148BTL/FAR) o

(HK$148 per sq. ft.) of similar ~ unchanged, the higher the
type of industrial premises
with adjustment on age,

condition, utility, etc. versa.

estimated cost of construction,
the higher the fair value, and vice

BREMREAE - SRR
B8 ATEERS R

SEERERERAT
—E-N\EEH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BHE_Z-N\F+_A=T—HILEFE

Year ended 31 December 2018

34

35.

. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group has a team headed by directors reviewing estimation
of fair value of the properties. Fair values of the properties are
estimated by the independent professionally qualified valuer on
an annual basis. Discussions of the valuation process and results
with the directors and the Audit Committee are held twice a year,
for the Group’s interim and annual reporting.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, and cash and short term
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial instruments such as trade and bills receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables and
accrued liabilities and other payables, which arise directly from
its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below:

a) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt
obligations with a floating interest rate.

The Group’s funding policy uses short term interest-bearing
debts to finance its working capital requirements and
interest-bearing debts over one year or internal generated
resources to finance its capital investments. The Group
borrows mainly at floating interest rates and the use of
fixed rate interest-bearing debts over one year will only be
considered for capital investments and under favourable
market conditions.

34. P EEFEE)

35.

KEMGEERF

AEBYMEZ A TFEESHEFEEN
NERE c REVEZ A TFEESSFA
BY BE A ERMEERE - HERF
RERRBEMAAKENTHARFR
BEREERBEZLZEGM

MHEREERERIEGE

AEEZIZRTABREHRRRITR
HitEE - WRIRE REMEFR - %F
TRTAZIEENEAAKELES
KES - AEENAZHERNEEE
EzEMERMTA  PlIInEERERSE
% FANFOR - BE REMRKER
FERRRIA N e AL B M EL ML A5 5008

AEESMT RS M T 2R ATIE
R - SRR  EERBRERBES
Rk - EESEHRAEEREEZS
[ER\BR 2 BRER - BT

a) F=EEk

AEENTHEMNEEBRARTR
ERIER I BN EERH -

AEENESBRREAEHE L
ERRHEBEENBERIA—
FULENHEERHAIERE
HESFEARE - AEEXE
WHEF RIERE - —FA LM
EXTEERRAGEENNTS

FETAERBEEAKRE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. MBEAKREEEERBER &)
AND POLICIES (continued)
a) Interest rate risk (continued) a) FI=EmEE)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a ATEREBETRIREMEBEBHRET
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other B o mAMEa B AERE
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax FIR - NEBE R E RS
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings): BRI EERTE) ZRERED
T
2018 2017
“E-N\F S S
Increase/ (Decrease)/ Increase/ (Decrease)/
(Decrease) in Increase in (Decrease) in  Increase in profit
basis points profit after tax basis points after tax
B2y BRBL B RR HE BRI
#m,/ (8d) (RD)/#m  #mn/Chad) (&),
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong dollar BT 10 (29,670) 10 (2,856)
Hong Kong dollar BT (10) 29,670 (10) 2,856
b) Foreign currency risk b) MR
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such AEEBEXHEKRR - LER
exposures arise mainly from (i) the operating units in Hong RENEEEELERURALE
Kong which maintain cash in Hong Kong dollar, their Be WRAHNEER BHE
functional currency, but make sales in United States dollar AET(TET]) - MEREBUAAR
("USD”) and purchases in RMB; (i) the majority of the BAESTE 5 ()P B KPEZZEE N
transactions of the operating units in Mainland China are TBUARERS  BHEESE
denominated in RMB but their funds are mainly sourced ZREEBEEBEN  RiET
from Hong Kong operating units; and (iii) the operating K EEEMRHE R ME TR
unit in Singapore which maintain cash in Singapore dollar, T W REBEER - BHEN
its functional currency, but make sales in USD. ETCIERTE ©

SEERERERAT
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

b) Foreign currency risk (continued)

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to USD and that the Group tries to match its assets and
liabilities with the same currency, the Group’s exposure to
USD foreign currency risk is minimal. The following table
demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group's profit after tax (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities).

35. KRB EEEERBE®)

b) MR (E)

HRBTEETHA R AN EEE
AEENERERES LRBEE
REE  AEEMAZERETIN
ERBEM A TRBRTN®
THREMEHRFETE - MI
BEXAGEHRAE KRB ZBENR
T AEEGRBRREN(REEE
ERAENATEELRER)Z
BURE DT ©

Exposure to foreign currencies

MNERR
2018 2017
—Z-\% E—+F
HKD RMB usb HKD RMB Usb
BT AR¥ E BT AR% e
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT B B BT
Financial assets SRIEE 7 417,297 40,898,507 3 394,857 28,717,113
Financial labilities TRAR (46,016,749)  (727,293)  (7,086,067)  (46,204,583) (455,275)  (8,698,102)
Net exposure FEB (46,016,742) (309,996) 33,812,440  (46,204,580) (60,418) 20,019,011
If the currencies FERRABER
strengthened by 5% 2B EBES
against the functional 5% @ B H % & 7
currency of the (R2) /%m
respective entities,
(decrease)/increase in
profit after tax (1,921,199) (12,942) 1,411,669 (1,929,041) (2,522) 835,793
If the currencies RERANEER
weakened by 5% INEEEES
against the functional 5% @ B H % & 7
currency of the #m/ (Bd)
respective entities,
increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax 1,921,199 12,942 (1,411,669) 1,929,041 2,522 (835,793)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of
impairment losses, represents the Group’s exposure to credit
risk without taking into account the value of any collateral
held or other credit enhancements.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. The Group’s trading terms with its
customers are mainly on credit, except for new customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. Invoices
are normally payable within 60 days of issuance, except
for certain well-established customers, where the terms are
extended from 60 to 90 days. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by senior management.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
default risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an
extensive credit rating and individual credit limit assessment
which is mainly based on the Group’s own trading records.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as 29% (2017: 26%) of the
balance representing a receivable from a single customer,
which was derived from sales by the precision parts and
components segment.

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

35. MKRMEEEERBE#®)

()

EREAR
WERAHHRRE R S &
EREEDNRAERE AR

AREENEERR - XL RFT R
B EMERREMEERE
M{EfE -

JEWBRIE

AEBERFEENE =ZFET
X5 HBAKEOBEK  FIA
BEEEHETRINER &
BB EERERRFR - TAE
BE-AKEEEFESFHRT
TBRFPHZAERER  EH
BEF—RBREMHIE - —KRHE
EFEEANTRAXMN - RIF(E
BEFPAZAANTENLTRER
BR -BREFHAEERHEE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of
clients and the trade receivables are categorised by common
risk characteristics that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. The Group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECL for trade receivables and recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting
date and has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the provision
matrix is calculated for each category based on actual credit
loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over which
the historical data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s estimate on future economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for

trade receivables using a provision matrix as at 31 December
2018 is summarised below:

As at 31 December 2018

35. KRB EEEERBE®)

« FEEREE)
FEWIRIE ()

AEENEFEBREZNEFA
X R IRIR AR AR RS
B REEFEPRRBA QG
FrE ISR MEE S - AR EIR
R A B RKAREN TER
FEEBE URESEBRE AN
2HEHNEEBRERERE
B YERYEREELEEEBR
RRHBEERERE  RREBEEHA
MEBRBEABOAMEERRE
THRE -REBE=-FNERE
ERERRTESEENNEE
EEERANEHRBEREX - WRIE
ERIMATEEZETHE  UR
R 57 SR JE S22 4 HA ] A A IR L
ZHEMZER - BREANEEE R
R BEAR RN U H BRI ER
B fEET o

HE_Z—NF+ZA=+—
B - {F BB A R R BRIE Y
FEERBRMBHEEBENER
BEALE T -

R-ZE-—N\E+=-A=+—H

Expected  Gross carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
RHBEER AEREE ERREE EERE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Not past due f# 7K 80 0 63,845,329 - No #&
Less than 1 month past due BHLR—EA 0 16,294,593 - No #&
1 to 3 months past due BH—Z={1A 0 6,295,444 - No #&
3 to 6 months past due BR=ZEA 0 931,896 = No #&
Over 5 years past due BHAENUE 100 822,410 822,410 Yes B
88,189,672 822,410
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

)

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

35. MKRMEEEERBE#®)

Credit risk (continued) <) EERKEE)
Trade receivables (continued) JEWBRIE ()
The ageing of trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 R—_ZEBE—+E+=_B=+—8"
which were past due but not impaired was as follows: IR 15 Rk (B /9 %80 B fE Uk BR 18 2 BR AR
DHTEAT
2017
Tt
HK$
BT
Less than 1 month past due wE DR —EA 12,359,593
1 to 3 months past due A —==@EAH 3,795,792
3 to 6 months past due BEI == < E A 1,232,792
17,388,177
Neither past due nor impaired R ER IR VER(E 56,526,966

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance as at 31
December 2017 were debtors with a carrying amount of
HK$17,388,177, which were past due as at 31 December
2017 but which the Group had not impaired as there had
not been any significant changes in credit quality and the
directors believed that the amounts would be fully receivable.

Included in the loss allowance as at 31 December 2017
was provision for doubtful debts for specific unsecured
trade receivables with a balance of HK$822,410, which the
contacts had been lost.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired as at
31 December 2017 relate to a large number of diversified
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

73,915,143

R—BE—tF+_A=+—8H"
AEBMEKERBEAESEERA
B A17,388,1778 THEBE A -
ZEHKERN -_E—+tFE+ = A
=+—HEH BREELER
B RAREEEXTEMEME
AEHREEREZERERFE
12 EUk e o

R=Z—tF+=-A=+—8"
5 18 7 1% B 15 £R FE B822,41008
T BEEEANE REBSD
JRE LA BR TR T 72 AE HO SR IR B4 o

R-FB—tH&t+t-A=+—8"
AR T8 A IR VR RR (B Y JE Wk 0R B2
RETREFER ZEREPA
HAP 22 MO AT SR ©

RZBE—NF+_A=+—H"
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE—

—N\F+ZA=t—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2018

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recognised loss
allowance of HK$822,410 (2017: HK$822,410) on the trade
receivables. There was no movement in loss allowance for
trade receivables during the year. The comparative amounts
represent the loss allowance for impairment losses recognised
under HKAS 39.

Other receivables

The Group considers that the other receivables have low
credit risk based on the borrower’s strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and low
risk of default. Impairment on other receivables is measured
on 12-month ECL and reflects the short maturities of the
exposures.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience over the past 3
years and the financial position of the counterparties by
reference to, among others, their management or audited
accounts and available press information, adjusted for
forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in which
the counterparties operate, in estimating the probability
of default of these financial assets, as well as the loss
upon default in each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant
after taking into account the financial position and credit
quality of the counterparties.

BEEREEEERBE &)
¢ FERRE)
JEWBRIE (&)
R-ZBE—N\E+-HA=+—8 "
7R & B 5t Uk BR JE RE SR B 1B B
#822,4108 (= T — £ &F:
822,410/ 7T ) » ANFE A FfE

WEREBERFHE 28 - LBS
BRERBEER G EAFE395%
HER R E R R R

E 1t EWK A

AEERBEMEBEFEANEE
REsE  ERERAEEHRA
J@?T MREREBETHENIR
58 NGB KR BUE o E b FE KK
BHOREN T —EANESREE
EEAE - YRR T REEER

ERAFEHREEER  ~N&EEE
EREBEABE-"FHNELE
BEEBELR R MBI
N EPEELEHEBRESL
EiZRBE RAIBSHTEER - I
BEEBEABFENMEMRER
A TEITENEBLER
PEHTARE  UEFZESRE
ENEOBRURSEBRTH
BEHBK - BEEEH B
AREEERR  AEEEEE
REZEEHMEENTEHEES
BIWRERK o
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

d)

e)

e EHRRME e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

35. MKRMEEEERBE#®)

Liquidity risk d) REBESEK
The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative and REBRHEHARUTORITE
derivative financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting NREEAE Z2IETTERITES
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments RBEEWT :
is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T+F
In the In the
Within 2" to 5t Within 2 ijg) 5t
Total 1 yearor years Total 1 year or years
amount on demand inclusive amount  on demand inclusive
®-% Eey
FHE EREF
—-Epg (BEEE —£xg  (BFEER
et BEX WE) k] REK W)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Non-derivative: FHTEE
Trade payables ERBRIE 44,923,952 44,923,952 - 54,679,126 54,679,126 -
Financial liabilities BENEHEER
included in accrued HivEFE L
liabilities and other cRAaE(E2)
payables (note 22) 3,084,823 3,084,823 - 7,567,097 7,567,097 -
Interest-bearing bank HERITEE
borrowings 32,237,641 32,237,641 - 30,002,133 30,002,133 -
Other borrowings HifEE 3,974,886 2,196,788 1,778,098 9,728,800 6,031,520 3,697,280
84,221,302 82,443,204 1,778,098 101,977,156 98,279,876 3,697,280
Capital management e) BEXREHE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirement. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

AEEEREANEEBERR
BAEENFELER NI NER
REMEALE  UXEEEK
BRLBBRRERERNEE

AEEERELERRZE(LLER
HEARAEBUHEELFAE - B
SRHABINTRENORE - FE
BERFRREKBEITHRMD - N&E
BT H 2B EMINDRH nE
AER - REEZZE—NEFKZ
T—+tE+-fA=+—HILEE
N BEBEERERNNER - BUR
NOBRE N A (2 B o

SEERERERAT
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. BEREEEERBE#E)

AND POLICIES (continued)
e) Capital management (continued) e) BEXREEH(Z)

AEERAEANABLRERR
BEARBR - HTNEEFERNK
BENIMERZFEFE - BEHF
ERETERITREMEES &
ERIA - At B E R H A B3
B XA RERBESFER
B BRABREARBEEAME
B RBEHRRCEAREL

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade
payables, accrued liabilities and other payables less cash
and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end
of the reporting periods were as follows:

ESUNNE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT I

Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 35,809,699 39,124,859
Trade payables 44,923,952 54,679,126
Accrued liabilities and other payables [fE&t 8 (& & E fth fE (0B 46,704,221 51,007,552
Less: Cash and cash equivalents IR MIREEEIER (43,762,395) (42,285,169)
Net debt 83,675,477 102,526,368
Total equity 273,573,922 266,838,875
Total capital and net debt BEARREIRFE 357,249,399 369,365,243
Gearing ratio BERBELEE 23% 28%

36. REHREIR

RZB—HE-_A=-+N\B BHEE
D EEAIF AR B K R —FE I B A R AR
FERHERZINBRER BG4
MISHREB L - AEEFEBEFALRE
HUBWEERTE -

36. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 February 2019, the factory of a subsidiary in the precision
parts and components segment located at Mainland China was
closed down subsequent to the end of tenancy agreement. Up
to the date of the consolidated financial statements, the Group
assessed the financial impact regarding the closure of the factory
is not significant.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-\F+-_A=T—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

37. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 37. DRI Bz AR T

POSITION
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
Notes HKS$ HK$
(=2 BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WEBRARZIEE 193,727,368 193,745,558
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE - ek
other receivables H b fE W FRI8 330,355 296,920
Cash and cash equivalents Re K\ EEIEE 164,457 139,544
494,812 436,464
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables Bt BB M E RN FIE 323,300 370,450
Due to subsidiaries FEH I B A R FE 99,150,205 88,770,308
99,473,505 89,140,758
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (98,978,693) (88,704,294)
Net assets BEFRE 94,748,675 105,041,264
EQUITY R
Issued capital B TR A 26 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves ] 28(b) 68,048,195 78,340,784
Total equity e ABRE 94,748,675 105,041,264

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
26 March 2019 and signed on its behalf by

EREECRN_T-NF=A-+"B#
R - A FIATRERE

Lai Pei Wor Chan Yau Wah
FELE A PR E
Director Director

EEd 3
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HE_ZT—\F+=-—A=+—HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2018

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group A T AZREERBE A A RFEE 2 248
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited ~ BEREEME © 1t 575 E & A EZE
consolidated financial statements, is set out below. BETEHRR ©

RESULTS S

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=t—HIEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—B-N\F T+ —FT-RF —FT-HFE _—_FTMOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T THBIT FHIT T

REVENUE A 463,655 422,925 431,017 431,757 465,277
PROFIT/(LOSS) BB RTE R,

BEFORE TAX (E518) 5,109 9,146 (8,302) 205 11,552
TAX A (3,884) (854) 192 (51) (1,029)
PROFIT/(LOSS) ViN/NEIEZZ =N

ATTRIBUTABLE TO Friksg A,

OWNERS OF THE (E518)

COMPANY 1,225 8,292 (8,110) 154 10,523
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

31 December
t=HA=+—-AH
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—EBE-NF ZT—+F —E-RF —T—HF ZZT—WEF

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAIT T T FATT

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 425,565 429,413 378,790 398,926 410,579

TOTAL LIABILITIES waB (151,991) (162,574) (145,729) (152,777) (158,344)

273,574 266,839 233,061 246,149 252,235
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